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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

W 5 fil 22

2018

—E-NF

HK$’000

BET T
Revenue W zs 26,099 28,390 -8%

(Loss)/profit attributable WE AEMNL(EBR), & H

to the owners (12,873) 10,793 -219%

Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER(ER), BT
(HK cents) (Pl (4.16) 3.48 -220%

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share TS (EE) B

(HK cents) () (4.16) 3.38 -223%
Total equity R HaRE 365,142 378,689 -4%
Net assets value per share SREEFRE

(HK dollars) (%) 1.18 1.22 -3%

(LOSS)/PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE BASIC (LOSS)/
RE‘VENUE TO THE OWNERS EARNINGAS PER SHARE
Wi WA ANFEAL (B518) itk A BERFEA (B518) / #L A
(HK$’000) (HK$’000) (HK cents)
(BT ) (BT ) OB
40,000 20,000 6
15,000 10793 4 3.48
30,000 28,457 28,390 10,000 )
26,099
5,000 (4.16)
(19,617) (12,873) 0
20,000
2
5,000
10,000 10,000 4
-15,000 6 6.3
0 -20,000 -8

2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 51 to 184.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 24 to 30 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2018, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 24 to 30 of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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RELATION WITH EMPLOYEE, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES
AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Corporate Social Responsibility Report during the year.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorized share capital
during the year under review. During the year 2018, 3,096,000 share
options (“Options”) were granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 (“Scheme”), at the
exercise price of HK$0.395 per Option. Details of the Company’s
share capital and details of the Scheme are set out in notes 27 and 28
respectively to the financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and
any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of the
Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 22,735,292 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this
annual report is 7.34%.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the
Company.

5. The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter
period as the Board may determine.

6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is
HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is less than 2 months
(expiring on 21 May 2019). A new share option scheme will
be proposed on the coming annual general meeting on 30
May 2019. For details please refer to the circular of the annual
general meeting to be dispatched together with the annual
report.

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or any of its Associated Corporation” and the relevant
movement(s) during the year 2018 is set out below.
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The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s share
options held by each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of
the Company and the employees of the Company granted under the
Scheme during the year 2018:
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TRBBR-T—\FEN  ARAMEE
£ ARAEBRARARARRRSARE
it B R 2 BIRE 2 2D

Number of share options
BRiEsE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
Exercise  Outstanding during during during during at
price per  at 1 January the year the year the year the year 31 December
Share HK$ 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
H-2-N% H=8-N\F
SEEE  -A-B WSB-NE HS3-ME MSR-NE HS3-0E 1AP-R
k8 BATE  ERRT O ERAE ERRN FREE HAGR
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 21 May 2019 0.31 8,930,087 - - - - 8,930,087
Director ek ZEENFRACTZRE
KEERt il = Z5-WERAZt-B
£z
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylia 14 September 2016 14 September 2016 to 13 September 2026 0.732 3,096,000 - - - - 3,096,000
Diectorand substantial ~~ —F—74 5 ENATRREZ
shareholder of the Company /LA TILA “ECAENRTER
SRfIRL
EERILTEERE 19 September 2017 19 September 2017 to 18 September 2027 0.698 3,096,000 - - - - 3,096,000
e “FtEAATARE
AAThA ZEZEENATAR
3 October 2018 3 October 2018 to 2 October 2028 0.395 - 3,096,000 - - - 3,096,000
“3-)\E Z3-)\5TRZRZ
+hA=H ZECN\EHAZH
Sub-total 15,122,087 3,096,000 - - - 18,218,087
st
Employee:
fEe:
Ms. Sze Tak On 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 21 May 2019 0.31 7,441,739 - - - - TA4,739
BEELL ZITNE “EENERACTIRE
il ZE-NERRZt-B
Sub-total 7,441,739 - - - - TA4,739
Nt
Tota 22,563,826 3,096,000 - - - 25,659,826
&
Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 22 May 2009, 14 September iz : EE-ZFTNFHRA=-+=H - ZZT—X~FNA

2016, 19 September 2017 and 3 October 2018 (the date on which the share
options were granted) were HK$0.35, HK$0.73,HK$0.69 and HK$0.395

respectively.

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December

2018.

+mHE - ZE—tFAATABRZZE-N\F+
BZR(AEHBEEER)MERKTED R
BE0.357T  EHE0.737T B HE0.607T BB
0.3957C ©

EMHRTEERER_-_F-N\F+=A
=+—HATfE -
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RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$56,734,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$157,244,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 55 and in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 183
to 184.

BANK BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$205,767,000 (2017: HK$243,089,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$21,000 (2017: HK$28,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 182.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREHEAE
The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of RAREHH  EESHEBEAENEES
this Report are set out on page 16 of the Annual Report. MNARFIREI16E -

The Group regards the executive directors, and the heads of ARNEBEBHNITES LERESFIETEASRE
functional departments as members of the senior management team. IEE[K E -

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management BffsENESAEEAEZHEHEEL T ¢
team were within the following bands:

Emolument bands Bl < &6 [E

Nil - HK$1,000,000 T Z 1,000,000 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 78 #51,000,001 T2 % #2,000,0007T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 12 000,001 T 2 78#3,000,0007T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 75 #3,000,001 ST 27 #4,000,0007T - -
HK$4,000,001 - HK$5,000,000 7 #54,000,001 7T 28 #5,000,0007T - -
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 78 #5,000,001 7T =7 #6,000,0007T - 2
HK$6,000,001 — HK$7,000,000 78 %6,000,001 7T = %7,000,0007T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 — HK$8,000,000 77,000,001 ST E 78 #8,000,0007T 1 -
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEF KL

The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the XRNEFRARPLEIREMEEE o  KEB R
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the Group ~ K EFRID BEA R REE - NEE
were attributable to hair styling. The percentages of the sales and Y 3XrEXEREEFEELAEE ZIEEEN
purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers — EEZEE H LI

and suppliers are as follows:

Sales HER
— the largest customer 17.77% —BRAEF 17.77%
— five largest customers combined 31.54% — Al EARPAE 31.54%
Purchases PREEEE
— the largest supplier 32.47% —EANEER 32.47%
— five largest suppliers combined 92.71% — A s AEEESET 92.71%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any REXNTRERE @ KFEH  HFE2BE AL+
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more  sf{F{R]JF E (BB EEFRAMEE A QT KA
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these 5yl Fr RHE)fIERZETEXTE otk
major customers or suppliers. PR TS o
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching (Deputy Chairman, resigned on 1 May 2018)

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one
month prior written notice.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 45, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is a
director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and
Barsmark Investments Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders
of the Company, and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited,
the holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Mr. TSANG holds a Master degree in Corporate Finance. Prior to
joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working with
international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 44, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed as
Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales and
leasing in the property investments business segment of the Group,
in particular the residential sector. Ms. Tsang is also a Director of
ST (79) Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the
Company and a Director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the
holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

pIT

A

N A BN B A i R

HITES

ERRELE  BEN+RRE AARQBHTE
Fe@EmrtzBmR  R—AANFER-ZT
MEDPERTANTEERTRERE - HE
EAEBREE  EHEERERERE -
454 AST (79) Investment Limited (ST (79)
Investment]) (AR Rz EE[REE) * Barsmark
Investments Limited([ Barsmark]) (&2 7] 2
FE[RE)K&ST Investments Holding Limited
(ST (79) Investment & Barsmark 2 2% 2 &)
ZEE-

BEEFALERERTRMN - MAXEH
Al WEABERB AR TIEZ&R B4
BFAZ BEERE  UBERREKRE -

Bl t  BFEN+TERE @ BERAEITH
FTREBREEZHKE  RZTE—SFES
FRVTEE - HENBEAEEYERE
NHZEERHERE - FlEE=mER
Bl o WL+ AST (79) Investment( AR & Z E
Z8E) - Barsmark(A ARG 2 EERE) » ST
Investments Holdings Limited (ST (79) Investment
NBarsmarkZ 2R AR])) ZEE ©

BRITRMEARIELHE  HEKES
BE8 - MAREHEA - BT EETH—
METEXHAA  BEHEE HERTS
HETHE UREEREEERE T —F&



-
e

T

|

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 61, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, aged 44, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2011. He received his tertiary education in
Canada. Before joining the Group, being an entrepreneur Mr. Au had
run for over 10 years businesses in various fields covering food and
beverage, interior decorations, trading in equipments, garment and
property investment.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 49, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 25 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 57, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted to Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 28
years’ human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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RAEX TR RAEERD 2 #s

(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i)

Company

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel Interest of controlled The Company
TR TE corporation
XGRS /NG|
Interest of controlled The Company
corporation
X E R NG
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia  Beneficial interests The Company
TRpZT EmEn NG
Interest of controlled The Company
corporation
ZEEEER VAYNS
Interest of controlled The Company
corporation
REthEEER VYN
Notes:
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments
Limited.
2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited.

MEE

19,329,195
(Note 1 and 3)
19,329,195
(BF&E1%3)
88,275,577
(Note 2 and 3)
88,275,577

(F7E2R%3)

3,064,000
3,064,000
19,329,195
(Note 1 and 3)
19,329,195
(P31 R3)
88,275,577
(Note 2 and 3)
88,275,577

(P 7E23)

I & %45 FaBarsmark Investments Limited

Himls o

HZERAD BST (79) Investment Limited 8

wmHEE e

6.24%

6.24%

28.50%

28.50%

0.99%

0.99%

6.24%

6.24%

28.50%

28.50%
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3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned
by ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of
Fortune Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which
is vested in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
as co-administrator of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel) and Ssky Investments Limited (a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors
of Barsmark Investments Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and
ST Investments. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba
Investments Limited. Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky
Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

3. Barsmark Investments Limited }2ST (79)
Investment Limited 2 B % 77 f& 415 i
ST Investments Holding Limited ( [ ST
Investments |) 2 E B A ° Fortune
Ocean Limited (—fH BB R L+ &
R 11 2 T LA B R R ST A B E HAFIT A
WEMNERZ AR AE2HERITRE
FERTBRILLIRERALL) &
EREERAA(—HBAEBREES
A BB 2 A7) KSsky Investments
Limited( — IR EBBELX L2 EE=E
B2z 8E])&EE=MEAST Investments
EHZ—ZBETRE - EBR AL
K% & R 151 22 &= A& Barsmark Investments
Limited * ST (79) Investment Limited &
ST InvestmentsZ £ % - MR ELE R
BHEHRKEERDRZES - BMHixt
Bl &Ssky Investments Limited 2 B 5
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(ii)

Interests in the Share options of the Company

Ms. Chu Ming Tak
Evans Tania

EN Ao

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
LRI -

Ms. Sze Tak On
iRy

22 May 2009

—ETNhF
HA=Z+=H

14 September
2016

—ERF
NA+TIA

19 September
2017

T+ F
AA+NHE

3 October 2018
—E-N\F
+A=H

22 May 2009
“EENEFE
FA=Z+=H

22 May 2009 to
21 May 2019

—TENF
FAZ+=R=
—T-NEF
EFA-+—A

14 September 2016 to
13 September 2026

—ERE
NA+THmBEZE
ZECRE

NA+=R

19 September 2017 to
18 September 2027

Tt
AATHIEZE
—E-+F
AATNR

3 October 2018 to
2 October 2028

—ZE-N\F
+A=8%
ZTZN\F
+AZH

22 May 2009 to
21 May 2019

—TThEF
hAZ+=HZ
—ZT-NF
RA=-+—H

DIRECTORS' REPORT * # & €& it 45

(i)
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RAEXTBREZ #ES

0.310

0.310

0.732

0.732

0.698

0.698

0.395

0.395

0.310

0.310

8,930,087

8,930,087

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

7,441,739

7,441,739

2.88%

2.88%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

2.40%

2.40%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the
Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.

E BB A o w0 AR B A
i R AT Z 4 SR

RZZE-NF+ZRA=+—8 REFHFK
HERGIEIB6HMRE 2 T BB RELM
BRAAREEERBAARCETRASS
FNEZTERRER AR ZBAMT
HERBE A LRBEZEERTIETHRAR
ZRETRIAINE o

Long position in shares R 2FE

Approximate

percentage

of total

Number of shareholding

Name of shareholder Nature of interests shares held HBEREZ

REREHE ERMtE FsRE BOBE D

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 19,329,195 6.24%

Barsmark Investments Limited (Bi{3£1) BEmiEs 19,329,195 6.24%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 88,275,577 28.50%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Fi&E1) BaEn 88,275,677 28.50%

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

ST Investments Holding Limited (FfsE1) SPEHEB S 107,604,772 34.74%
(MizE2)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

BEREBR LA (M) REHEEE R 107,604,772 34.74%
(Mf7F2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 34.74%
corporation (Note 2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Fff&E1) ZIEREE S 107,604,772 34.74%

(MtsE2)



Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1)

Fortune Ocean Limited ([f3¥1)

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia (Note 3)
Bt KRR 4+ (F3E3)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)

Limited (Note 4)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)

Limited (Ffiz¥4)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Ff:4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Ffz¥4)

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 4)

AfEEER L (MiE4)

Interest of controlled
corporation
SPEH A B S

Beneficial interest

Btk

BX

Interest of controlled
corporation
SPEHEE S

Beneficial interest

ey

Bl

b
N

Interest of controlled
corporation
SESEE S

Interest of controlled
corporation
SRS EE S

Interest of controlled
corporation
TG AR
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107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(Mi3E2)
784,125
784,125
107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
GE#)
50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250
50,996,250
50,996,250
50,996,250
50,996,250

50,996,250

34.74%

34.74%

0.25%

0.25%

34.74%

34.74%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%

16.47%
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Notes:

1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital
of which is vested in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia as co-
administrator of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (jii) Ssky Investments
Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited.

3. Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are Co Administrators of
the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest of
controlled corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in the Co
Administrators.

4. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly-
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 18 March 2019, the Group entered into a provisional sales and
purchases agreement with an independent third party to dispose
an investment property at a consideration of HK$16,800,000. The
carrying amount of the investment property as at 31 December 2018
is HK$16,000,000. The transaction has not yet been completed
before the date of approval of the financial statements. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement on 18 March 2019 for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing and Mr. AU Chi Wai
Edward. Two meetings were held during the current financial year.
Audit Committee had met with the management of the Company
and the auditors to review the final results, considered the significant
accounting policies, and discussed with the management matters
relating to the Group’s internal audit and internal control system.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B A W S5 T

OPERATION REVIEW

General Performance

During the year 2018, the Group’s net loss was approximately
HK$12,793,000 compared to the net profit of HK$11,024,000 in
2017. The net loss was mainly attributable to the unrealised exchange
loss, net of HK$7,623,000 in the year instead of unrealised exchange
gain, net of HK$16,352,000 in last year derived from Renminbi bank
deposits held.

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 8% from
HK$28,390,000 in 2017 to approximately HK$26,099,000 in 2018
while the gross profit decreased by 10% to HK$17,283,000. Other
income decreased by 64% to HK$9,427,000 in the absence of the
income derived from the Renminbi unrealised exchange gain, net
of HK$16,352,000 in 2017. The administrative expenses on the
other hand increased by 22% to HK$45,540,000 mainly due to the
Renminbi unrealised exchange loss of HK$7,623,000 incurred in the
year under review.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$365,142,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$1.18. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$587,191,000 and HK$222,049,000
respectively.

Property Investments Business

During the year under review, the Group acquired a premium
residential property located on an exclusive waterfront site in
downtown Macau at HK$16,000,000. The property was acquired at
vacant possession and had been leased out since completion in June
2018. The acquisition will bring the capital appreciation potential and
broaden the asset basis in Macau. Total asset values of investment
properties increased by HK$30,500,000 compared to the same in
2017 of which HK$21,200,000 attributed to investment properties
in Macau and HK$9,300,000 from investment properties in Hong
Kong. Total rental income was decreased by approximately 7% to
HK$9,488,000 as our Macau retail shop had been vacant throughout
the latter half of the year after the old tenancy expired. Return from
leasing the investment properties is about 5% comparing the gross
rental income and cost of investments.
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Rental income from Macau properties was decreased approximately
22% to HK$3,025,000 with an average vyield of about 5% comparing
the gross rental income and cost of investments. It was due to
vacancy of our Macau retail shop since July 2018.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s en-bloc
boutique hotel situated in Sheung Wan and some residential units
in Taikoo Shing was increased approximately 2% to HK$6,463,000
with investment yield being approximately 5%. The higher rental rate
secured from leases renewal during the year explained the increase
even though the incremental effect was partly offset as one of the
Taikoo Shing residential properties had been vacant for four months
before a new tenancy commenced.

Hair Styling Business

In 2018, the hair styling segment continued to be a stable and
healthy contributor of returns to the Group. For the year under review,
turnover of this segment amounted to HK$16,611,000 representing
a decrease of about 5% as compared with 2017 and segment profit
decreased by 54% from HK$843,000 to approximately HK$389,000.
Reduced income from hair stylists leaving our salon resulted in
substantial drop in segment profits as the business segment incurred
high fixed overheads other than increase in staff cost being a labour
intensive industry. Our salon will be relocated to a retail shopping mall
in Central, the heart of Hong Kong’s most prestigious business and
retail district after expiry of tenancy in May 2019. The new location
with excellent transport connectivity is expected to attract more new
customers and talented stylists to join our team, at the same time
increase market awareness and attention. In future as in the past
stringent measures will be taken to control costs while at the same
time deploying means and marketing strategies to boost turnover.

Other Business Segments

Money lending business was dormant during the year when the Group
realigned its business strategy to allocate its surplus funding to other
yield enhancement investment products. Going forward should the
opportunity of a potential loan arised, the Group will continue to adopt
a cautious approach to manage credit risks.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a cash and bank
balances including pledged bank deposits of HK$203,790,000
and net current assets of HK$4,161,000. The current ratio
(calculated as the current assets to the current liabilities) of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 1.02 (31
December 2017: 1.13).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. But the Group has substantial amount
of Renminbi deposits on hand and the exchange rate of which
may become volatile. The Directors consider that the Group
may expose to fluctuations on Renminbi exchange rates.

During the year, the Group’s investment properties, prepaid
land lease payments and certain bank deposits were pledged
to three banks to secure the bank borrowing of approximately
HK$205,767,000, which is denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and bearing interest at floating rate. The Group did
not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: Nil). There is no significant capital
commitments as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total equity
of HK$365,142,000, HK$405,000 of fixed rate liability,
HK$205,767,000 of floating rate liability and HK$15,877,000
of interest-free liabilities, representing 0.1%, 56.4% and
4.3% of the Group’s total equity respectively. The gearing
ratio (calculated as the total long term loan to the total
shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2018
was approximately 2.6% (31 December 2017: 0.1%).
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Significant Investments, material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired
a residential property in Macau at HK$16,000,000. Other than
this the Group had not made any significant investments or
material acquisition and disposal.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed approximately
a total of 38 employees (2017: 33). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$11,464,000 (2017: HK$8,695,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Prospects

2019 is expected to be a year of challenges at the backdrop
of a delicate economic outlook from uncertainties of Brexit and
the trade disputes between China and the United States which
has been dragged on since June 2018 and unnerved the global
economy with uncertainties. All these factors will no doubt
slow down global economic growth. Recently there has been
more meetings held between the two countries aiming towards
striking a deal and brings hope that the trade war would end
earlier in the coming months.
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Despite uncertainties in market sentiments, volatilities in
the securities and foreign exchange markets and China’s
decelerated growth rate as it has now been working for quality
growth instead of fast expansion, but with Hong Kong’s solid
economic fundamentals and active participation in the Belt
and Road initiatives, we expect by cautious optimism Hong
Kong’s economic growth to remain stable. Meanwhile over in
Macau the dampened business environment has affected the
business of its gaming industry showing the first decline in
accumulated gaming revenue from the beginning of the year
after a consecutive growth momentum since the industry’s
bounce back in July 2016. But thanks to the recent openings
of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and High Speed Rail
(Hong Kong section) which is expected to increase tourists
arrivals and fuel the long term growth of both Hong Kong and
Macao economies. Furthermore, in the “Outline Development
Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area” unveiled earlier, the Central Government sketched out
the development directions of the Greater Bay Area in the
upcoming 15 years and named Hong Kong and Macao as
two of the four “core cities” in the region. Given Hong Kong’s
advantages in finance and professional services while Macau
is known for leisure and tourism, the development of the
Greater Bay Area will bring valuable opportunities to these
two economies boosting various local developments for
sustainable growth and competitive edges.
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Property leasing has always been core business of the Group.
As overall business sentiment turned negative by end of
2018, investors have been taking a wait and see approach.
Facing with property adjustment and control measures
announced by HKSAR government which aim at addressing
our housing issues together with changes in interest rate etc
that will likely to prevail in the Hong Kong property market in
the year ahead, property market may be more volatile. We
believe the residential market would continue to be robust
and demonstrate moderate price increase driven by limited
supply and supported by relatively low mortgage rates as well
as ample financing liquidity. According to market survey the
industrial property has the largest upside potential with the
expectation of a new round of industrial revitalization. In March
this year the Group disposed a residential unit in Taikoo Shing,
Hong Kong to realise its investment and enhance the financial
position of the Group. In the remaining year the Group will stay
vigilant in capturing market opportunities to sell our investment
properties in the residential sector and consider exploring the
industrial properties sector in which continuous conversion
and redevelopment of industrial buildings for office, retail, hotel
and residential use would sustain attractive rental and capital
value increases in future. We will also consider looking into the
office market with a view to acquire an office premises for the
Group’s self use.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to develop existing
business and enhance the asset quality as well as to improve
our overall competitiveness and implement comprehensive
risk management strategies in order to deliver steady growth
prospects and long term value for shareholders. As in the past,
we will keep up our efforts in environmental protection and
community care for the betterment of the community and the
interests of our stakeholders.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group always strives for being an outstanding member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
As such, each year the management would set targets to achieve
goals of community care and environmental protection by actively
participating in various social services. In the future the Group shall
continue to seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its
employees and associates in building stronger and more vibrant
communities.

During the year 2018, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 11 years in succession

- “The Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Logo” by
the Hong Kong Productivity Council for 5 consecutive years in
SME Category and for 4 consecutive years in Volunteer Team
Category

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 4 years in succession

- “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board in
“Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 3 consecutive years

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 2 years in succession

- “Family Friendly Employer” award by Home Affairs Bureau and
Family Council for the first time

- “Business for Sustainability Award” by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Services for the first time

- “Hong Kong Green Organisation” by Environmental Campaign
Committee for the first time

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a more
detailed Corporate Social Responsibility Report of our activities during
the year will be posted in our company’s website later.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2018, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rule”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that are
discussed later in this report.

THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprises six Directors, two
of them are women, half of the Directors are non-executive and
independent of management, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. AU Chi
Wai Edward and Mr. Lau Pui Wing. Each of Directors’ respective
biographical details is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors”
of this annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board
has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging
their duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. Lau Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company
will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, 6 Board meetings have R#EZ-_Z—NE+-_A=+—HILEE -
been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: BEQRITNANSE EFTHEFBOT ¢

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel DR LE

(Chairman and the (FEFEITEAAH)

Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching WAL E

(Deputy Chairman, resigned on  (SI£/E -

1 May 2018) R-FE—)1F

AA—HEF) 1/2 0/0 0/0 0/0

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia &R L+ 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania kKBAfE#L 1 6/6 0/0 1/1 2/2

Independent Non-Executive BV ##HTEE

Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit BN S 6/6 2/2 1/1 2/2
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward BEELE 6/6 2/2 1/1 2/2

Mr. LAU Pui Wing B 6/6 2/2 0/0 0/0
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GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company convened 1 general meeting on 25 May
2018 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. Details
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows:

BARR &

RAFE KRR ZZE-N\FRAZ-+H
ABM-RBREAR  BAARZREESF
A& EFHFERIBENT

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESERE
FIBTHEERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel BRAR LA
(Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) — (F/E#i T 4%,) 0/1
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching BRI A
(Deputy Chairman, resigned on 1 May 2018) glEE R-ZE—/4F
AA—HET) 0/0
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia BB L 0/1
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KRB+ 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTES
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FTABEEE 1/1
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward EEEEE 1/1
Mr. LAU Pui Wing b 1/1

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel,
Chairman of the Company, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2018 because he had other
urgent personal engagement.

SRR FEA RN EEFT ST FEREFR
RBFAE - ARFIXTFEERRELERSA
ESNEMARELFEARAR_T—N\FH
AZ+THABBRTZERRBFAE -

35



36

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT - 1> 3 4 if # &

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
provided to all Directors related articles on regulatory updates,
management skills and corporate governance from The Journal of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, Hong Kong Institution
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and materials from The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited website. Each of the Directors had noted and
studied the above mentioned documents and that the Company
had received from Directors the confirmations on taking continuous
professional training.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of one year until terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

|

RIBDE T RIZ ST RIESCEAL.5(F

2EE
ERSMFHEEXEERRE UERRERN
WEZAMBRED  BERREEEEAER
BEEAMDEMBENERL THEESELE
Ble RRABEABELZHRENEI - XLEE
EEARRERZAG  BREMAET-

RAFEEEABFERMILE  ARALAEE
EXRUATERHANELRS  BEGHM
NERFFRIR G DG 8T AT R
KEBEBARIMBERARBUZERE
BZRER  BEEROEREXERZIEBX
E-REFCIBIYCHEBE LA K
RATHE KRB EER 2 N EE RS 28

5
=7
e ©

HH L RAL L

BEWTEFCEARBTULRBEH - ML
BEMRAME  RRKSEY  BEEEM
—HAR—HELTIRANERZEE BN
FTURERIERILE - MBEEFYERBARAZ
REAANTAR D EFR REERRABEFA
G LEWmEE -

ARREEBIIFATERITLRBEL
ERRIRAREZER R —F  BEEEA—7
AR—HEHTPR—EAZEmBEET A
RUIERLE - AN BRERARARRERER
RBFRE L#WTEE -



AR (SR ARAE o —F— /VFFEHR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT e 1> 3 4 if # &

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, two of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, Mr. Hui Yan Kit
and one is executive director, Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. AU
Chi Wai Edward is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting, to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2018, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward
and one executive Director, Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. HUI
Yan Kit is the Chairman of the Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

3. In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4, Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to review the
existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior managements
of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration packages for
Directors of the Company. The recommended remuneration packages
have been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of five members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director), Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and
Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice President of Human Resources &
Corporate Affairs). The Executive Committee shall normally meet on a
monthly basis and in any event no less than quarterly.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (i) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.

The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision D.3.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2018,
the members are Mr. Lau Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward all of whom are not
involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
during which the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2018
were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

o state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 50.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
audited by BDO.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, BDO, the external auditor of REZ-_Z—N\FE+-_A=+—81 Jtif‘

the Group, provided the following services to the Group: ZK%@Z&I\*M?%(EWE/’%_M*F RS
R RAEBIRMEUTRE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EB—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Audit services ZER TS 520 520

Non-audit services IEZERTE = -

Total: A&t 520

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2018 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

BREEREFBRRIND BB B R A
DR EBIME R BB WREB SR
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MERFEEETAARBEZHER KUK
EHAKEMER AR EAXEEHRE

FRLSRABRIBE A IR EIFBE 2 RIE -

ARBEHERFURBEEERZ 2B RE
BREERIEE  EHEATE  REEE
SR LB RERAREB LT ER R 2BMB
BRI RN AEE2BAEREERER
BHENEENMEERE

RAFE  EFSCEZE—RHERQBETT
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 16 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 181, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited
EBUEREEMEBAMERAR

T 37 A% B R

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

EBFHEERI115E

Fk & 2548
BELCEX(EE)ERAA
(REREZEAMK L2 BRI E])
Hlfu iR R
=

EEDERENFESIE181 Bt LB E (£
BE)ERAR([ERAR D EEWNBAR (&£
B Z2REMBHRE WA BEHREEE
R-ZT—N\FE+-A=+—B2&8 05K
MBREHZEZAUEFEZEAGEZEA KA
R RERZEHRMEABEERER U
MG IEHRENT  BEEESTBRM

g o
BERR  HEUBRECREFTEGTAD
NE([BBEHMAE ) BHENETBHBR

SREAN(TEAMBREENDEEMRFits
kR EEER=-Z—N\F+=-A=+—H
MEZEaMBRARBEZBLFE BEEE
MEEMBERRALEGARERE YO K
REBABGPIZHEREZRRE -
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EECRBEETB GG RMONBBEER
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BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$353,700,000 at 31 December 2018, with a
revaluation gain for the year ended 31 December 2018 recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of HK$11,963,000.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with potentially significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

= evaluating of the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.

5 ok 2 A% =5 T
AREZFEAARBEESNERHE  RA
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SEARBEFEARER  MAEREEERE
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REVFME
(ZpRitiR & B 5 MR MRES.8 « 41:15)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR 12 R 42 4 B A IS R

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED Z BT (4)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used — FEFTEETHERERTKRE UKAE
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related EEGSHERBRRESEEGEE -

disclosures made by the directors.

- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the  — REEEHRAFBELEEENGE
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit ERRBE  WRECDERNERR
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists FoBMERTRY EEEEFELE
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt B BE DB K B KRR Y =4 sk 15 0 /Y
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we BATHREREZ - WEERAAGTESR
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to ATHEERE  EFFTRZEE RS
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures IR I B A ISR AN ERE TR
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures B ONWEHERETLR  BEITE
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are EZHER  c BENGERIAEREZEED
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our WMERHESHNERRERER -
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may MWARREGHRBRAATEES BE£E
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. THEABRELENRET -

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the — — HER A ISR (B IEHE) R
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, SR R RAR C AREES TR
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent REEEARVHRABRE S REE -

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the  — B BEEBERNSEENEKTHHNE
financial information of the entities or business activities within BENEBSTENEZRE + UL
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial AU BRERBERER - EEBEEE
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision B CEBUHATEBRNEZIE - &
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely g AT E B AREST o

responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number P0O6158

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A A A iR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z —E— )\ - H=1+—HIFE

2018
—s-N\&
Notes HK$’000
B 5 BT T
Revenue & 5(a) 26,099
Cost of revenue 2 A AR (8,816)
Gross profit ER 17,283
Other income H A A 5(b) 9,427
Fair value gain on financial assets at RN ER A B2 55
fair value through profit or loss BE2NTEKE 300
Fair value gain on investment properties &% & W% 7 A FEWES 15 11,963
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEEE 2%
financial assets B W= =
Administrative expenses TEFAX (45,540)
Finance costs BhE AN 7 (5,824)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRATSHIR(E18), & F 8 (12,391)
Income tax expense FriS Rt f 2 S (402)
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE(BR) w=F (12,793)
Other comprehensive income HftZ2mEmWK A
Items that may be reclassified HEJEEEN 782
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2EE
Revaluation of available-for-sale BHEAIREEZHHEE
financial assets
Release upon disposal of S 2 B
available-for-sale financial assets BE2ER
Item that will not be reclassified HESTEEN B2
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZ2EE
Changes in fair value of equity BAFEFAEMETR
instruments at fair value through IWAZBRATEZ
other comprehensive income N EEE (1,367)
Other comprehensive income REEHMEZEKA
for the year (1,367)
Total comprehensive income AEE2HIALLE

for the year (14,160)

2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
EETT

28,390
(9,187)

19,208
26,406

1,947
4,000

2,361
(37,398)
(4,964)

11,555
(631)

11,024

4,540

(1,244)

3,296

14,320
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o e TN S

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o 7 —E—)\F+ - H=1+—HIFE

2018

—B-N\F
Note HK$°000
By aE BETT

(Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

BT B REEARFE
(B8]) %A

ZN/NCIEZ 2SN

FEFER M £

(12,873)
80

(12,793)

(14,240)
80

(14,160)

Total comprehensive income for DR EEEGAFERH
the year attributable to: W45 -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ZEN
Non-controlling interests R
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings BREAREE(EE),
per share 2R 10
- Basic — &K
— Diluted —#8

HK cents
A

2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
EETT

10,793

231

11,024

14,089
231

14,320

HK cents

A1l

3.48
3.38
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LA BB AR L&

as at 31 December 2018 o R—F

Notes
i

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB k& 14
Investment properties TEYE 15
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT LT EFRIE 16
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EZTBEE 17
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMER

other comprehensive income WA 2 BF 75 & B 17
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT L & 0E 16
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEGTAERZ

profit or loss W5 EE 19
Trade and other receivables and 2 Ny Hth e I BR 3 K

prepayments B FRIE 20
Tax recoverable AU B IR
Pledged bank deposits BEHERRITER 21
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTRR 22
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables = AN 23
Other payables and accruals H A B BR SR S B R T RE
Obligations under finance leases AT E A 24
Bank borrowings (secured) IRITIEE (HEF) 25
Tax payable FEfIHLIR
Net current assets REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
BT T

2,435
353,700
3,331

14,378

373,844

70
123

5,439
3,893
32

80,382
123,408

213,347

144
12,390
288
196,364

209,186

4,161

378,005

—N\FE+=A=1—H

2017
S
HK$’000
BT

2,949
323,200
3,454
19,029

348,632

55
123

6,741
4,689

128,811
150,065

290,484

<
13,623
288
243,089
1

257,100

33,384

382,016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BB AR L 3R

as at 31 December 2018  R-—ZT—)\F+_-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —F—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=3 BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Obligations under finance leases BhEFH E AR 24 117 404
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FER) 25 9,403 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEETIBEE 26 3,343 2,923
12,863 3,327
Net assets EEFRHE 365,142 378,689
EQUITY R
Share capital R& 2 27 61,941 61,941
Reserves i 31 298,815 312,442
Equity attributable to the owners of AAEHA AELER
the Company 360,756 374,383
Non-controlling interests JEI IR R 25 4,386 4,306
Total equity RS 365,142 378,689
On behalf of the directors RERE=S
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
ZEE REAE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A G E A A B 3R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o # %= —F— \F+=-H=+—HIFFZ

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
KAAREAEGRE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive Share Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revaluation income option  Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve’ reserve’ reserve* losses* Total interests Total
BIVE
TARMRE
288 : ;
Ra  RORE  BARR  EGER  EERE  BRERR  ZiER gt FERES ait
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Btr B BBt BBt #ETr AT BT BT BETn EbTn
(Note 31(a) ~ (Note3ffp)  (Notedt(c)  (Note3i(d)
) N 1 =) 3

At1 January 2017 R-E-tE-f-R 61,941 153,481 146,189 4564 - 3,902 (10,854) 309,223 4075 363,298
Proft for the year FER R = - - - - - 10,793 10,793 21 11,004
Qther comprehensive income EUESTION
- Revaluaton of avalable-for-sele ~ERhE?
financial assets HHEE - - - 4540 - - - 4540 - 4540
- Release of reserve upon ~HETHIE/GH
disposalof avaable-for-sale EEkERER
financial assets - - - (1,244) - - - (1,244) - (1,244)
Total comprehensive income TEERANAEE
for the year - - - 3,296 - - 10,793 14,089 21 14320
Shares option granted (note 26 BRI ERE( ) - - - - - 1071 - 1071 - 1071
At 31 December 2017 H= 3 Jc$+ A=t-B
as originally presented 61,941 163,481 146,189 7,860 - 4973 61) 374,383 4,306 378,689
Iial applicaton of HKFRS 9 note 2 M%?&W*
ERIEOR Mk - - - 014 7014 - - - . 5
At1 January 2018 (restated) W-5-NE-A-H
(823 61,941 153,481 146,189 { , (61) 374,383 i 378,689
(Loss)/Proft fo the year MF Eﬁﬂ /& (12879) (12873) (12,799)
Other oomprehenswe income
- Change n fairvale of equiy instruments Tﬁ HE Mﬁﬁ@%@
at fai value through WAZRATAY
other comprehensive income ATEED (1,367) (1,367) (1,367)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ANNEE
for the yeer (1367 (12873 (14,240) (14,160)
Shares option granted (note 26) AR HERE(HH00) 613 613

Trangfor of financiel assefs at fairvalue — HERATE AL 2E
through other comprehensive noome WAz RAT A%
resenve upon the disposal of equity EERNTEFA
instruments atfai valug through other  Efe2EUAEE
comprehensive ncome (3,382) 3,362

At 31 December 2018 HZ%-NFTZAz1-B 61,941 163,481 146,189 846 2,265 (9,552) 360,756 4,386 35,142

PRZZ SRR EHRBRBHEER K

A
=
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. MRz [REE] -

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period 0 R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
O L o S

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o 7 —E—)\F+ - H=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BETT BT
Cash flows from operating activities RELBRELCEERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BrFT{5 R AT (E518), (5 F (12,391) 11,555
Adjustments for: AT RBEELFAE
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRERE
plant and equipment 14 542 679
Fair value gain on investment properties BEWMEZ N FEkE 15 (11,963) (4,000)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 81+ 70 & 2 IE#E 8 16 123 123
Reversal for impairment on loans receivable  EUE X 2 MER 972)
Write off of trade receivables B 2 R WER 2 T gE 363
Employee share option expense EEBRERS 28 1,071
Fair value gain on financial assets at BAFEFABRL
fair value through profit or loss B EE A FEKE (1,947)
Bank interest income SRITH B UA (8,232)
Dividend income from listed investments RELETIRE 2R EWA (795)
Finance costs BB A 4,964
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BB k&
plant and equipment pdl & (9)
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale HERHEBE 2K
financial assets BEz M (2,361)
Operating (loss)/profit before working HKREEESEEA 2 KE
capital changes (B18),/%F (25,956) 439
Decrease in loans receivable R ET RS = 37,878
Increase in inventories FEEN (19) (4)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRZ
through profit or loss MBEERD 1,602 2
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other EE R H MR R TES
receivables and prepayments FEGEM), R (286) 484
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, SERMERD - HMERMERR
other payables and accruals RERTRIE (R D), /1L (1,188) 371
Cash (used in)/generated from AEEETE(FTFE) FieH %
operating activities (25,843) 39,170
Income tax paid B FEE (15) (279)
Net cash (used in)/generated AT (FTFE) FTis B %
from operating activities JFEE (25,858) 38,895




AR (SR FMRAE o ZF— /VFEFEHR 57

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
o L e o S

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z —E— )\ - H=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz BET T BT
Cash flows from investing activities REXBELECERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - WE&& 14 (28) (57)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREBZ
plant and equipment Frf8sE = 9
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits 2 MER1TEZE L/ (3E0) 48,429 (13,481)
Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits iceh | = s = o e G
maturing beyond three months ",/ (4Em) 11,285 (35,350)
Bank interest received B BERITH S 8,492 8,157
Dividend received from listed investments Bk E EmiE 2R E 994 795
Addition of investment properties NEREME 15 (18,537) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEAEHEZMEEE
available-for-sale financial assets ZFTE5E 5,361
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERATFEFAEEER
assets at fair value through other AZ BT BE 2 i3 5UR
comprehensive income 7,118 -
Purchase of listed share measured BERATEAAEMEZT
at fair value through other WAFTE 2 EWRHR
comprehensive income (3,834) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBAE(FTH)Hz
investing activities JEEE 53,919 (34,566)
Cash flows from financing activities MEERELCRESRE
Capital element of finance lease payments BERENRZ BRI 33 (287) (288)
Interest element of finance lease payments BMEREMN K S0 33 (38) (38)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMERE 33 10,000 -
Repayments of bank borrowings EBRRITEE 33 (47,322) (2,130)
Loan interest paid BENEZRF S 33 (5,786) (4,926)

Net cash used in financing activities BEEBTHAZ FE (43,433) (7,382)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
O L o S

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o 7 —E—)\F+ - H=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—z-n5 L S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BETIT
Net decrease in cash and HeRBSZEY
cash equivalents WD FE (15,372) (3,053)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—F—HzH4EH2S
ZEY 87,419 90,472
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—B=+—-HzE2K
at 31 December ReZEEY 87,419
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBEEEN2
cash equivalents RS AT
Cash and bank balances as stated in RERE M BARRKIR 2R 2
consolidated statement of financial position NERTTHERR 123,408 150,065
Less: short-term deposits with maturity W BB=EAE—FA
beyond three months but B2 EETE R
within one year (51,361) (62,646)
Cash and cash equivalents RTt-ZBA=1t—HZEEEK
at 31 December ReEEYD 87,419




1.

AL S (SR AIRATE o —F— /VFEFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s
registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is at Unit 906, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 30. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as
“the Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 181
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 were approved and authorised for issue by the
directors on 27 March 2019.

— &k

g (EB)BRAR(TAAR])
DREREAMKL A —HEREE
RAG EROREAEBERZTE
RABI([BERM]) £ - RAFIZ
=F fitt 9% = B iz 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Bermuda © H = Z& X2 5H &
HFELITE1S1REARPLOE06E °

HAEPBRRARRBZNEEEE
BBE25 - BRAZBEHN
EBESNEAAZET T([AET

Jel) e

ARBETENEREZRER - &K
BRARZEBEBFBHNMES0 -
REXH - ARE R EKNE AR GRS
RIAREE] -

BN ESNE 181 B 2R U IHRERTD
BEEFGMAS([FESMA
e ) EHZ BBV BEREEN(ES
B REER D (A eREmAEER
Z AR EEMIRELER - BEGE
ERI([BBSFER]) RER)RE -
RAEVERERNBERERFEL &
B FTRE s ETARBIZ BAEERE °

BT\t _-_A=1t—HLILF
EzHaMBREDIN_E-NF=
Attt BmESHERRETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED

HKFRSS

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2018:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(“HKAS 39”) for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (i) classification and measurement;
(i) impairment; and (iii) hedge accounting. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has
resulted in changes in accounting policies of
the Group and the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

2.

R T AT A T W A T
0 e A

(a)

RAFE SAMER] BRI
BREEN-—FT-NF—A
—BEBER
RAFE - AEEEEEAT
JIBmEB G A BEM AT
R EET ek - R FER
BRI RRBEAEEHR —F—/\
F-A—HRRZFERRE Y
BHRREMIHE LR

FEUBRSEN  2RIA
F9%
EEMBRSEN  RPANME
$15%
EEMBRSEN  RPANBAER
$15% BB mEER
F15H2ER)
ERRERSEN  URDAERATRS
FoR BT ZABERGE
B eiEd BRLANE
405 2T
ERMKREERFIR
SRMITAE(HEAUKRE
ZER|ZE5% |)

() EBMIANSERNE

BB R 2E R o5R
R—_E—N\F—H—H
2k 2 1% F A B 2 B RS
BMRB B EERIE39
SRE AT A - KA
E([HBgERIZE39
) EETemIT A
SHEENFE=[@A
| (1)DEEFTE (2
WA RQE e TR
.-G _ZE—N\F—A
— HREMNE YR
SREBFOFREEHAE
B BRERREGA Y
BWRERPER L SHE
) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance
of reserves as of 1 January 2018 as follows
(increase/(decrease)):

2. BRI SR AT U RS
#7451 ()

(a)

RAMIREETERME
BREEN-—F-—NF—A

—BRBER (&)

BEBYBHREERFER

TRIA(EBMBRS

ZRISE9% 1) ()

() 2B TANSEKAE
(&)
TRELBEEEEY

F R A OH IR =
T-NE—A—BZH
M BES 2 E 0T

(=, Crd))
HK$’000
BT T
Revaluation reserve BEhH#HE
Balance at 31 December 2017 N-_E—+F+=_HA=1+—H
2 s 7,860

Reclassify investments from available-for-
sale at fair value to financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income

(“*FVOCI”)

EMDBERAFEFEZA
HHEREERATE
APAEMEEBRA(TRAF
BFFAEMEERA L ZH

Restated balance at 1 January 2018

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve

Balance at 31 December 2017

Reclassify investments from

available-for-sale at fair value to

financial assets at FVOCI

BEE (7,014)
RZZE—N\F—A—HKE?

B2 EEERS 846
BAVEFAEMEEBA

REZHKEE
R=ZE—tF+=A=+—H

2 iREE S =
BHHBIRAFENEZAH

HEREZRZRAFETA

EmamR Az Mg EE 7,014

Restated balance at 1 January 2018

RZZ-N\F—-A-BEE7
& 2 AR 7,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it eliminates
the previous HKAS 39 categories for financial
assets of held-to-maturity financial assets, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of HKFRS 9 on
the Group’s classification and measurement of
financial assets is set out below.

2. BRI SR AT U B
#45E I ()
R SRIERT BB

(a)

#

HEA-ZF-NF—-A

—BEBER (&)
BEBUBHRELERFIRE
BMTR(EBUBHREER
955 1) (%)

(i)

TR T AN ERE
(&)

FEEMBHREENFEI
HEMBELE S ERE
XBERMUBAMBZ
R DBRRFENR
E o ERERRAFER
ABZ WY B AER
5 ZBBEEERRE
el BNATEEZDS
B OREtEEEA
R RIFLBHEE
X % K & &t 85 B A 1F 5
oo UeHh - BB B R
SRANFORREATEE
FTAERIE 39T A MK L
BRAWKEERMBA
BEHRE - A - HEEX
BEAMREBEEBGFTE
AIERNBELABAE
IPZMBEE BER
K FE MR GR IR B Rl g &
ZHBEENDE o &
BB B mEERIF
G ASEAEMEE
ERTESRTANS
AR BERTE -
BEMBREER TR
HAEEMBEEDS R
KA ENZEHIIMT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;A B AR B RE

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs. A financial asset
is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised
cost (“amortised cost”); (ii) financial assets
at FVOCI; or (iii) financial assets at FVTPL.
The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i)
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and (ii) its contractual cash
flow characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also known as
“SPPI” criterion). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for
the classification.

2. R BB RT & B

i v [ (48)
RAMTREBTERRE
HEEA-—F—\F—A
— BN ()
ERRBREEAHR S
I A(FBHEREER
0% 1) ()

(a)

(i)

TR TAMNSERGE
(%)

BIEE B B % 3k & 2R
FOHR - BRETEERK
BR X (BD & 2 PR BR R
BREBEESYBERE
ERIFEISRHERNME
B )N - BNV
REEEATFENRS
RN (fis &30 FEE A A
AR ([1EAFEE
ABR DI BEE) T
EYBEE - WHKEE
DA () DA 8 Ak A
(TSP AN ) 51 BR 19 B
BEE : (iR AFEFTA
HEme2mEKANTEE
B (iR A FEA
Bm(EER LX) - R
BRBVBREERF
B EENDE—
MBERMELER] : ()ZF
BHBEEMNEBER
LV EEHRESRER
BTERINERE KT
B R - A 1T
N RF B ER]) - 1R
BRBVBREERF
o mARSTETAD
HE TR KEEEDH
TR c MMz BE
Nem TEEREETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. PRABET BB T A B
HKFRSS (CONTINUED) T o5 HE R (48)
(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - (a) HAHITIKBITETBHE

BREEN-—FT-NF—A
—BEBER (&)

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

BEBUBHRELERFIRE
BMTR(EBUBHREER
9% 1) (&)

(i)

TR TANSER;E
(&)
EMBEERKFAAT
&t - BXWEIEER AT
Bt AB% - BIZBIBE
EEABEIHRAAGH B

. It is held within a business model whose . HEUAEEBBRE
objective is to hold financial assets in B %A E W
order to collect contractual cash flows; EHEEREN
and X¥BEXNFER

&

. The contractual terms of the financial . WBEENE L
asset give rise on specified dates to cash 1R AE B E B H
flows that meet the SPPI criterion. EEXEFTAEINAR

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it

T &AM B ERAH
BERE -

EBREWNTAATE

meets both of the following conditions and it has I B RIRIETE AR
not been designated as at FVTPL: NEEF AER - Al
A EF AR M2 AR

AFTE ¢
. It is held within a business model whose . HEUEEKEE
objective is to achieve by both collecting VWEeR=ERD
contractual cash flows and selling EMBEERNE

financial assets; and

° The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

BRAKHE &

. MBEENALN
R E R E B H
EEFAEXMAR
& N B 2 Al
RE&ReE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost
or FVOCI as described above are classified
as FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

;A B AR B RE

2. BRI SR AT U RS
#7451 ()
RAMG SRIET B BB

(a)

£

HEA-—F-N\F—-A

—BRBER (&)
BEBUBBREERFEIRE
BMTAR(EEBUBHREER
£93% 1) ()

(i)

TR TR ERE
(&)

RUIRFERIL FEFER
ERzNERERER
ZN SUIRENE 4k
BREMZERASZ
JIRERFEREE
B o ZEETDAERR
BERBEER - 1A Lt
FED TR A B P RS
EFBAFEFTAEM
EEHBRANEGHMBE
E ANEREAYE
stABE - WBEME
TEMBEE - RIIR
FERE - NEEA AR
Bt e R A (3
R BRBHKATE
A FEAAEME

ERARTE) BIRRAFE
stAB#z - FIRREE

€ R BR A 1R R
SRR EAL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z - =

—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. BRAVERT BUSAEET B BB
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

o e HI (4H)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - (a) HAFITRLEBITEBUHK

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

(Continued)

(1)

BEEY-—F-N\F—A
—BEBER (&)

BEBUBHRELERFIRE
BMTR(EBUBHREER

£95% 1) (&)
Classification and measurement of financial (i) T TASBERE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The following accounting policies would be AT gt EEASEAR
applied to the Group’s financial assets as AEEMKEE &8
follows: o
FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value,

dividends and interest income are reoognised in profit or loss.

RAFERFAER BATEGFABREREATENE - 2 FEEZS  RERFEKRARE

Amortised cost

FVOCI (equity
instruments)

BAVERARMER
WABEARTR)

P IERR o

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
REBHNANABZMBEERBRABRNEEE - FIEWA - ER K&
NMEHEASBERBRPHER  KIEERRANIESE P ER

Equity investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend
income is recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.
BAFEFAARMEEBAZRAREDRATENE - RIERBEBAF
BRIAA/AKEBIRERAE » BRIREBRFER o Hiblas REEFERN
HEtE2EWARER  BTesfoEEEs -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;A B AR B RE

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

As of 1 January 2018, certain equity investments
in listed securities were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to financial
assets at FVOCI. The Group intends to hold
these equity investments for long term strategic
purposes. Under HKFRS 9, the Group has
designated these equity investments at the
date of initial application as measured at
FVOCI. As a result, financial assets with a fair
value of HK$19,029,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value
to financial assets at FVOCI and fair value gains
of HK$7,014,000 were reclassified from the
revaluation (available-for-sale assets) reserve
to the financial assets at FVOCI reserve on 1
January 2018.

2. BRI SR AT U RS
#7451 ()
RAMG SRIET B BB

(a)

£

HEA-—F-N\F—-A

—BRBER (&)
BEBUBBREERFEIRE
BMTAR(EEBUBHREER
£93% 1) ()

(i)

TR TAMNSERGE
(%)
R—_ZE—NE— A8 —
B &TREMKRAE
BHECHUHREE
CHBEEEENER
BEAFEFAEMER
WAZHIEEE - A&
ERFEZERAKE
EREIERE & - RIE
BEAMBHREEANEFQ
AKEEREEZS
R AIA FE R B 8 2 iR AR
BEBEATFEFAH
tEEmKAGTE - A
I R=—ZF—N\F—A
—B - AFEAEBE
19,029,000t 2 B 7% &
ECHEAFEFEZ
AHECBEESE
FABEEERATFERA
EmEzmkA @ RAFE
B Uk z= 78 ® 7,014,000
TEBHEGBAIHEESR
E)RBENIEEERA
FEF AEAMEE KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED

HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

(1)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - (a) FHAHTRLEEITEBIK

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued) WELR-—=S—NE—H
—HREM(E)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) ERUBHREEAFGRES
AT A &8 EHEEA
£95k 1) (&)

Classification and measurement of financial (i) T AT BERE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The following table summarises the original TERBAARAEFENR =
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the —N\NEFE—A—HZEY
new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for BEEREBES S THE
each class of the Group’s financial assets as at 1 AIZE 395 R B st = E 7
January 2018: BRI T B 5 W
RIS Frat 288 A1 -
Carrying Carrying
New amount as at amount as at
Original classification classification 1 January 2018 1 January 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9  under HKAS 39  under HKFRS 9
R=B-N\F RZB-N\F
RESERBR —A—BRE —A—B#fE
REEEEER HERISEOH BEEMEN BHEUBREEL
BBEE FIFRELE NH2E £ MIREE FORNEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Available-for-sale financial Available-for-sale FVOCI 19,029 19,029
assets (at fair value)
AL EHKEE A E (R ATE) BATERA
HinZ2EHA
Financial assets at fair value  Held-for-trading FVTPL 6,741 6,741
through profit or loss
BATEFABREZ RIEER BATEA
M EE B
Trade and other receivables  Loans and receivables Amortised cost 4,044 4,044
5 T L {th LR BR X E R R BN
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 128,811 128,811
BHEARITER BERRERERR BN
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortised cost 150,065 150,065

2. BRIV AT SR A AT A s 5
o e HI ()

B RRITER

BB ESAR

BHRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing the
HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model”. HKFRS 9 requires
the Group to recognise loss allowance using
ECL model for trade receivables and financial
assets at amortised cost, earlier than HKAS
39. Pledged bank deposits and cash and bank
balances are also subject to ECL model but the
impairment is immaterial for the current period as
the counterparties are reputable banks.

;A B AR B RE

2. IR PR S AT A IS
#4738 ) (4
KA RNEET B RYE

(a)

£

HEA-—F-N\F—-A

—BRBER (&)
BEBUBBREERFEIRE
BMTAR(EEBUBHREER

955 ) ()
(i)  BIEEERBE
RN E B B s i 2 R

FOWRE RARE R E
B BmEEGHE
AIFE395R [ EELBER
ARG [FRHMEER
BEMEEERDE
A - BRPBHREER
FORBRAKEERE
BB EREIRRT
MR A X YRR R IR
BHK AR E
ENBEHREEEE -
ERROTESRAER
ReFEMARRAEY
EEBERER - EREL
B REHAHEM
FXTERX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12-month ECL: these are the ECL that result
from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period; and
(ii) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.

2. BRI SR AT U B
#45E I ()
R SRIERT BB

(a)

#

HEA-ZF-NF—-A

—BEBER (&)
BEBUBHRELERFIRE
BMTR(EBUBHREER

955 1) (%)
(i) RIEEEAREE)
RIR & B B 5 & A

FOW - BEBEIZRINA
TEAR-—FEEAEGFS :
(2@ AW TEHEEE
B HEARRESBHR
12{8 A B ERBEE
HNEMHBHMBEREER
Bt R()VEEFEHE
EEE: EARE®MT
BT F R A A 8
MENEHBELENTE
HEEERE -

BEHMEEEENE
EHEEBEIENR
BENERMNNANES
8 H 7K & 8] 78 H W B
MAERESREZEN
EH - AERIKRRE
ERBERNERTE
HEITHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are
based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month
ECL is the portion of the lifetime ECL that results
from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the loss allowance will
be based on the lifetime ECL. When assessing
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

2. BRATHET BB ET & I B
i [ (48)

KA REBTERRE

REEA-—F—\F—F

— B ()

ERRBREEAHIR S

BT A(HBHEREER

(a)

957 1) ()

(i) RIEEEA)REE)
BHEEBENEGE)
AEBCEERBYMH

EAERIF ISR ML IEF
EEXRUYSRAHE R
o W RIEEMARE
EEBEFERYRERER
8o ARBEERIENAK
SEBEEEBRER
W37 BB A B A A
HERAVATRE 1 E =AY
R -

REMEFTEEEM
= EHEEBENU2
BAEHEEBEE
F 12 AEHEEE
BARREERS BHRE
12@MARNEENSET
EENEHMEEDNS
HEHEEEEN—B
2 e SR 0 W B RILIE
EERKRABEEM
BI| 5 5 8 E 0 2 HA 78 51
EEBEEET - NET
IS EEBVIRERE
TERR RS A AR
e RN G EEER
BEK  AEEEEE
HAREEFSNLHAS
FR AN BE5 118 0 T A]
BHEERAIEER -
EEREAEEAT
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A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z - =

—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. The Group considers
a financial asset to be in default when: (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criteria is more
appropriate.

The maximum period considered when
assessing ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

2. T“'FH%JT%T&%%W?I%?%E??%
o e HI ()

(a)

RAF R RIETE BT
WEEN-—F—-NF—A
—BREM(E)
ERMKREEAFENRES
BT E(EFBMKEHREER
$£o%: 1) (&)

(i)  HBEEERFEE)
B EEEENTZ(E)
BRIEAREBEEGERA
REFZDBFENER S
EFRE @ AEBE/BEZY
% & EE HE B 30K Al
EERRE KEEM -
AEERBYBEER
THER T AEL : ()fE
AEELEETEBZR
ﬁuiﬁﬂWW%ﬁDm

&5 T g SRR KA B
MASEEBERINERE
EEE Si)ZHBHE
EBEBIBAIOKR - BRIE
AEEBAERARME
TN BENERBETRER
BREHIZEE BES -

REARBEESRRE
ZENREMEA/NE
EHEEERRN&ZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Presentation of ECL

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECL model

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
simplified approach to measure ECL which
recognises lifetime ECL for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. In
addition, the Group applies the 12-month ECL
for other financial assets at amortised cost of
the Group including other receivables, deposits,
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank
balances. No additional impairment for these
receivables as at 1 January 2018 and during the
year ended 31 December 2018 is recognised as
the amount of additional impairment measured
under the ECL model is insignificant.

;A B AR B RE

2. AR AT AR T AV BT
45 1) ()
RAE SRIERT BB

(a)

]

HEA-—F-N\F—-A

—BRBER (&)
BEBUBBRELERNFERE
BMTAR(EEBUMBHREER

957 1) ()

(i) RIEEEA)REE)
BHEEBRNZET
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no
impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply hedge accounting in its hedging
relationships.

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9
was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new ECL
requirement, if any, are therefore not reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
on 1 January 2018. This mean that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9, if any, are recognised in accumulated
losses and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9
but rather those of HKAS 39 and thus, certain
comparative information may not be comparable
to the current period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)
(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
(Continued)

(iv)

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of initial application of HKFRS
9 (the “DIA”):

o The assessment of the business model
within which a financial asset is held;

o The designation and revocation of
previous designations of certain financial
assets and financial liabilities as measured
at FVTPL; and

o The designation of certain investments in
equity instruments not held for trading as
financial assets at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt instrument had low
credit risk at the DIA, then the Group has
assumed that the credit risk on the asset had not
increased significantly since its initial recognition.
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A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five
steps model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method without practical expedients. The Group
has chosen to recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses at the DIA (that is, 1
January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 would not be restated.

There was no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended 31 December 2018.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2.
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and
the nature of the changes to previous accounting
policies in relation to the Group’s goods and services

are set out below:

Product/service

Em/ R

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
BARABBEOME - BITEN
BRI RAT IR

T T AT AT 7 Y B

a4 ] (41)

(a) HAHITAKBITEBHME

HEA-—F—-N\F—A

— BRBEM(E)
BEBMBRELERE155% -
EFEHANE([EBHE
REZERE155 1) (F)
FEESTBEARE@ALAS
EExEmmEREHBESS
BR 2 e EFIEHIIAT

Nature of change in
accounting policy and
impact on 1 January 2018
S BRSHNMERR
—E-NF-—A—-HHEE

Hair styling services
income

SR RET RIS WA

Gross rental income
from investment
properties

KEREMEZ
kAL ON

Customers receive the services,
which contain certain performance
obligation with the same pattern of
transfer, when those services are
provided. Revenue is recognised
over time as those services are
provided.
BEPEXRY - & h aEIRERE
RrAMRRIBEBBER 2 BHRE ° Ik
NIRB R T EEIR (L BE A R R -

Not applicable.

Impact

HKFRS 15 did not result in any
significant change or impact on
the Group’s accounting policies.

e
BB B M R B 5155 3 R M
AEENOHERELEARH S

S 480
FE o

Impact

HKFRS 15 does not apply to
lease contracts in the scope
of HKAS 17. In this regard, the
rental income from investment
properties fall outside the scope
of HKFRS 15.

b2 4
BAVBREEFIGRTERR
BASHEAZ17HEBERN 2 HE
ESR - #mE  KEREVE
Z B WATES A 15 s 4R
E1GREEN ©
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations; application
of principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual
property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group had
not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first, year.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification

and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to
equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transaction
and has no share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 - Investment
Property — Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is supporting
evidence that a change has occurred. The amendments
also re-characterise the list of evidence in the standard
as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other
forms of evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously assessed transfers.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases'

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'’

Amendments to Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 3
Amendments to Definition of Material®
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3
to HKFRSs 2015- Business Combinations;
2017 Cycle HKAS 12 Income Taxes; and

HKAS 283 Borrowing Costs'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
The directors anticipate that all of the relevant
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. The directors are
currently assessing the possible impact of these new or
revised standards on the Group’s results and financial
position in the first year of application. Those new or
reviewed HKFRSs that may have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements are set out below.

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16,
a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classify cash repayments of
the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and present them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$4,301,000 as disclosed in note 32(b). A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, as the leases
will be capitalised in future, operating lease expenses
will no longer be recorded for these leases while
depreciation and interest expense will increase due to
the depreciation charge on the right-of-use asset and
the interest expense on the lease liability. In addition,
more quantitative and qualitative disclosures about
the leases will be made following the requirements of
HKFRS 16.

Except for the above, other new or revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective are unlikely
to have material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position upon application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and judgment
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

3.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments, in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

= exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
end of reporting period retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the end of reporting period. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average exchange rates for the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.4

3.5

Foreign currency (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue and other income recognition
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.5

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)
The Group recognised revenue as the following basis:

(@)

Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and transferred over time. There is only
one performance obligation. In general, there is
no credit term offered to the customers which is
consistent with market practice.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017
Revenue and other income is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the income and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably on the following bases:

(@)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured. This is usually taken as
the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the relevant lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives of 38 years
or over the term of lease, if shorter.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 10-33 1/3%
Furniture, fixtures and office

equipment
Motor vehicles

20-33 1/3%
33 1/3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z —F— )\ + - H=1—HIFFEF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.9).

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of reporting period.

3.7

3.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and
equipment and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets, are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
lease arrangements corresponds to those applied
to comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments less
finance charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued)

Operating lease charges (the Group as
lessee)

Where the Group has the right to use the assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Assets leased out under operating leases
(the Group as lessor)

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured
and presented according to the nature of the assets.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial Instruments

Accounting policies applied from 1 January

2018
()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
OCI. Debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZ—ZF—/\F+=-H=1+—HI FF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECL are
measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (ii)
lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECL is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are
based on the 12-months ECL. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECL.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance lease
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set
out in note 3.11 (ii); and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZE - =F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

(1)

Financial assets

Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
end of each reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
initially at fair value and other financial assets
are initially measured at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets are reviewed to assess whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent financial assets held for
trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or using
a valuation technique where no active market
exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised as income in
accordance with the Group’s policies in note
3:5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost. Gain
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the loans and receivables are derecognised
or impaired as well as through amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from a change in the fair
value, excluding any dividend and interest
income which are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 3.5,
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses
(see the policy below) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z —F— )\ + - H=1—HIFFEF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZ—ZF—/\F+=-H=1+—HI FF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see note 3.6).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Bank borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the
end of reporting period.

Obligations under finance leases

Obligation under finance leases are measured
at initial value less the capital element of lease
repayments (see note 3.10).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and
other payables and accruals) are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee
which is not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, it is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (note 3.18); and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

EEE RO ()

3.11 &R T A(E)

BE-®—t5+-A=+
— B LA 2 R (D)

(i)

HBERER

MBRERANVBEETA
(RERA)EAREHF
BAREERSEAKREE
BEBEEB TR ZKRRX
BEEECNTE S 3
B mFEABENEE
RAZEH -

fisf 2= &= B VE 1 2 B 755 &
R IEIE TE A FEE
Az BIg¥YIPEE
N ERBLE 28 1%
ERAEVNEEEEZR
SR AHER o B IA T
R - AEEIR()IZES
SEHERIFEI7H [ B -
HARBBERKREE
(F¥sE3.18) : K (i)¥14a
Rz (WEA)
LRESSFTLERFE8
BT R 2 Rt
HARSEAE)FE
FIIEEREH -



AL S (SR AIRATE o —F— /VFEFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of reporting period. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences. This involves the comparison
of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements with their
respective tax bases at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred
tax amount is when an investment property is carried
at fair value under HKAS 40 /nvestment Property.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
end of reporting period. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if, the Group:

3.14

(@)

(o)

has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.15

3.16

Share premium

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EEEFIEORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.17 UROX Nz EREME

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
3.20 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(vii)

(vili)

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
3.20 Related parties (Continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iif) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for grouping of various customers that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment properties
were revalued at the end of reporting period by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgment, the Group considers latest completed transactions
and information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, please refer to note 15.
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5(a). REVENUE 5(a). Y&
Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities, FR - KREAREBETLEBK 2 DER
is recognised during the year as follows: WS -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Rendering of hair styling services TR E A 05T ARTS 16,611 17,454
Interest income from money lending BEZFEKA - 715

Gross rental income from investment REREMEZES
properties I A 9,488 10,221
26,099 28,390

S5(b).OTHER INCOME 5(b). HAB YA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Bank interest income FRITHEUA 7,410 8,282
Dividend income from listed investments KB _ TR E Z R EMHA 994 795
Exchange gain, net b s - 16,352

Sundry income FIEUT A 1,023 1,027

9,427 26,406
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0.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following three operating segments:

Hair styling — Provision of hair styling and related
services in Hong Kong

Money lending — Provision of commercial and
personal loans in Hong Kong

Property investments - Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income potential and for capital
appreciation in both Macau and
Hong Kong

3 ¥ Bk
REEHERTAEERTESAH
BRERENEBEBAEKID 2 EIR
DEARBE ZEFRE D KRR ZAEE
BEM  AKEERBIEEEDHL
REDEBEN - AHFE2RTHTES
(EBEERERE) ZEBAKE DT
REANEBETIZEMRREREE
FEBBERDRBUAT=ERESE -

ERRE - EEBRMEDR
RAARRTS

e - EEBREEERA
AEH

MERE - RAMORPIRES
EERETMEMN
BRUE & AN R
AR HE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

72 &P Uk

—B2-N\%F
HK$°000
BET T

Hair styling BRI 16,611
[+
B

Money lending
Property investments

26,099

Unallocated income ROFBA
Exchange (loss)/gain, net EH (E8) WS35
Fair value gain on financial & A F(EFABRZ

assets at fair value W EEY
through profit or loss N ERE

Gain on disposal of available- & 7] & 7 Bi 75

for-sale financial assets BEz M

Corporate staff costs AE|BITRKA

Other corporate and EMARRADEEREZ
unallocated expenses

(Loss)/Profit before BRETSHIR(E18),
income tax il

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred by
each segment without allocation of central administrative costs.
Segment results exclude certain bank interest income, dividend
income, exchange loss/gain, net, fair value change on financial
instruments and gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets which arise from assets that are managed on a group
basis. Segment results also exclude corporate staff costs and
other corporate and unallocated expenses. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

MEKRE 9,488

T E R (4

"%Wé&%

REERUZS|MO B D 2 RS R E
%ﬁZﬁ*ﬁﬁuT :

Segment results
DEBEE
2017 2018 2017

R -\ B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T EELEEA BT

389
(30)
10,221 642

28,390 1,001

5,724
(7,623)

(7,402)

(4,391)

(12,391)

LB 2H KRB RBRINGE TP
Z WS o

DEAEEES BRI Z G, FTE
EZEE WER KA RITHEAAR -
DEEBETBIBRTABWA « KB
WA - BHEER W58 REE
AECH VEEEEX VST ARYF
EEHLREENHHEEZHBEEZ
Wz o DEBEENRTBIERAAE TK
AEEMATARKDERS o Ty
MPNTESERZ L BEDERE
TRIANGHE D ZRIR -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zrul&EHR (4)

=]
Segment assets and liabilities THEERAE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —FT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT IT
Segment assets PEEE
Hair styling ERIEET 3,483 3,329
Money lending (=01 123 35
Property investments VIR E 364,139 334,965
Total segment assets DEPEEBEE 367,745 338,329
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEEEZHBEE 19,029
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEMEEmBEA
other comprehensive income TG EE 14,378 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTAEBRZ
profit or loss BB EE 5,439 6,741
Pledged bank deposits BIHIEITER 80,382 128,811
Short-term bank deposits EHRERI TR 111,980 141,848
Other corporate and unallocated assets ~ EMA T RADPEE 7,267 4,358
Consolidated total assets BHEERRE 587,191 639,116
Segment liabilities PEBEE
Hair styling EZRIE 1,638 1,606
Money lending =01 16 73
Property investments VIR E 62,093 55,929
Total segment liabilities DEPBELREE 63,747 57,608
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBEE 3,343 2,928
Borrowings RITEE 153,404 198,692
Other corporate and unallocated liabilities Hfh A rl M ADELEE 1,555 1,204

Consolidated total liabilities A AEERRE 222,049 260,427
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o # %= —F— \F+=-H=+—HIFFZ
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 4r#P&RH (4
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) ﬁ%BﬁE&E{E(?.E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and ?‘JEE:;T’I”“’ BRI R D & o HBEE IR
allocating resources between segments: ms :
= all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - FrBEEAEHDIEER] 2|D P
than available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets (AIEHE 2 MBEE  BAF
at fair value through other comprehensive income, Bt AEM2EBAZHKE
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, E - EBEAFEFABRZZTE
pledged bank deposits and certain short-term bank BE  REGEETEZER
deposits which are managed on group basis and other HEIRITERARE TR ERT
corporate and unallocated assets; and TM&E@ AIRRDEEE
BRAN)
= all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other = FiEaBEHPREAE2HRSD B
than deferred tax liabilities and certain borrowings (FREaERIREAHEEESIE Y
which are managed on group basis and other corporate ETEERHMATRADE
and unallocated liabilities. BERI) o
Other segment information Hh 5 #BE R
Fair value gain on Additions to specified Depreciation and
Interest income investment properties Finance costs non-current assets amortisation
RIEHA RENEATERE BERA KEFRBEELRE fER&H
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\F BebEEgd —E-\F Wil CF-)\F EeESELA C2-\F Bk A —2-\F ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HKS'000
sl AETT MG SYA  AETT A ART s AT i AT
Hair styling EiE ) 2 15 - - 17
Money lending EE - 715 - - -
Property investments 1R & 3,500 [T 4,000 4,926 , a7
3,535 5,077 4,000 4,926 : 334
Unallocated L 3,875 3,870 - 38 33
Total @ 7,410 8,947 4,000 4,964
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods were delivered.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
specified non-current assets and revenue from external
customers, analysed by the geographical location.

S EBE R (48)

i & &R
EEERDEE(ATBREVKEEZ
IERBEE) ZWRUETIRIEEES
BREMESD - REZMEMNE Y
REERHREXERNEZME S
ﬁj\ o

T ARIEEFRBEE EmMENK
BN EFPzWSz o (R ENE
DHT) °

Specified non-current Revenue from external

—E-N\F
HK$’000
BT T

Hong Kong (place of domicile) Z&& (FT1EHY) 274,771
84,695

359,466 329,603 26,099 28,390

Macau ST

Information about a major customer

Revenue from one customer of the Group’s property
investments segment amounted to HK$4,637,000 (2017:
HK$4,637,000) which represented more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

FRBEE

assets customers

A SR
BF 2 W

2017 2018 2017

“E—tF gt — T+ F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETTT LR BT

265,938 23,074 24,602
63,665 3,025 3,888

ER—SZEXEEFNEHR
KEAKEMERED 2 —BEF
2 Waz RS 4,637,000 (ZF—+
% : ##4,637,0007T) - HAEENK
s f#E10% ©
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. Zrul&HR (48)

Disaggregation of revenue palid &
In the following table, revenue under HKFRS 15 is TREETEMEMS L2053 Rk
disaggregated by primary geographical market, operating ATERE R 9 5 1B 15 & 7 B 78 3R &5 &

segments and timing of revenue recognition.

A 1557 MR8 2 Wt

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15

Timing of revenue recognition
- Transferred over time

Hong Kong (domicile)

Hair styling services

Revenue from other sources
Rental income
Money lending

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest charges on finance leases
Interest charges on bank loans

2018 2017
—E-N\F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEETIT
REEBMEREEAFE1555
HEANEFEFAHOKRE
WA REREE
—-BEEEER
B (FrEEH)
SRR AT AR 17,454
R E H A Rz Wi
AU A 10,221
BE 715
28,390
7. RBVE AR
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
MEREFESRET 38 38
IRITERA B 4,926

4,964
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8. LOSS/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
BT

(Loss)/Profit before income tax is
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Auditor’s remuneration

Employee benefit expenses (note 11)

Exchange loss, net

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Reversal for impairment on
loans receivable

Write-off of trade receivables

Rentals received/receivable from
investment properties less direct
outgoings of HK$529,000 (2017:
HK$686,000)

Operating lease charges in respect of:
— Buildings
— Motor vehicles and equipment

BEFB R AT (B ) SR
B (Gt A) THIEB &I

FEA L 1078 B RIR 5
WE - BE MR ETE

ZEE I =

EERAFA (MEE11)

PE i 5 185 B
HEME - RifREE 2 W

EWE K 2R ERE

FE W E 5508 2 8
B EUIRE RS R
HiEX HE#529,00070
—E—F
75 686,0007T )
THREZ CEHEMRT ¢
—BF 3,848
—AERH 469

(8,959)

% I 45 B i s 18, i A1

2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
BT

972)
363

(9,535)

3,828
468
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE i A58 B S
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Income tax expense comprises: FrisfiAS e

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERTIE — BB TS
— Tax for the year —FRFIE 86
— Over-provision in respect of prior years — B & E B2 5 (40)
46
Deferred tax (note 26) IERERIA (M 5E26) 485
58]

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other
group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates regime is applicable to
a nominated qualifying entity in the Group for its annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2017: 12%).

AKBAMTEATGH - BE_T
—EFT-A=+—RALEE - &
718 B3 48 S I B FUI16.5% i
-

R-ZZE—N\NE=A=+—8 BT
FEBB T —tFRBE(EET)(FE7
OB ER(MERHER]) - H3|A
FIEBHMBEH - EHERKR=_Z—N
FZA-+TN\BEERALEZLIRE
ATIETHR - RIBFFNESHMHRH
A EREEE M E S 2,000,000
TC i ) % #28.25% 7F 7% » AR 8B &
2,000,0007T 895 F1| # 1% 16.5% &) Fi &
BE - BAETHAFEGHEREHNE
1t 5= [ B A8 105 ) 75 4 B AR IZ E B R
16.5% 5T 8t o F 15 % A% ) i A 7 @
ARAEE —HEREAEREERA
T N\F—A—HBREZERBRZF
J_ET/HHFEEJ S

RIBRFIBIS RN R G - ORI
PRI R AR 2 B A RIZAIR12% (= F
—HF 12%) ZHREBARFIFIEH
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. Jrf5®i5 % (48)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting RERMERAENEHA L Ee T
(loss)/profit at applicable tax rate is as follows: (BB),/&wHz ArEREReT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ST IT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax BRETSFL A (BE), & (12,391) 11,555
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% REBLEETE16.5%(=F
(2017: 16.5%) in Hong Kong —+F : 16.5%) 1 EFIE (2,045) 1,907
Effect on adoption of two-tiered profits FRANFIIS T IR 4%l 2 o 2
regime (14) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ E fth FlEE [ &K= 2 B
operating in other jurisdictions RaElz TR R E 434 570
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 RS & 3,196 2,099
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BEARMIRAZ RIGE (2,720) (5,020
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised FRFEHAEFERER
tax losses utilised this year MBS 2 (125) (617)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred AERABBELEHRIEEE 2
tax assets TiIAE 18 2,128 1,645
Over-provision in respect of prior years BT R (30) (40)
Others HAftb (422) (113)

Income tax expense TS i X 402 531
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(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

10.

W (R EA
ARABEABEEERER (B
18),/ BRI DR TR

PLRE: 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Loss)/Earnings (&518), BF
(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners RARER AEMN(EE),/
of the Company Y A (12,873) 10,793
2017
ZE—+tF
000
TFhx
Number of shares BRE
Weighted average number of ordinary M EERER(ERE),/
shares for the purpose of calculating AT 2 E B INE
basic (loss)/earnings per share FH 8 309,706 309,706

For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2018, no adjustment has been made
as the exercise of the outstanding share options has an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating the basic
earnings per share of 309,706,000 shares, after adjustment for
the potential dilutive effect in the potential ordinary shares to
be issued on the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company (note 28) of 9,662,000 shares.

RABEBEZE_T-NF+_A=1+—
BLEFEZSRETER  MEHE
BREXRBERELAR  BR/ITERTT
ERERER R D FRENER -

HE-_Z—+&#+-BA=+—HIHF
B EREBRMNDIBERAAGRES
AFEAG 2 A £ BR FIBR A AT
KA AE & BE R RE (M 5E28) B i
T 3 1729,662,000 8 BEE B 2
BEBEY ZELAEREZANUGE
FRREANZF AT ERINEFIIH
309,706,0008% 5t &
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11.

12.

—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11. & B A B2
2018 2017
—B—N\F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ook e
Salaries, allowances and staff benefits e ERMKEETHEA 26,221 25,703
Commission & 514 528
Retirement benefit costs IRRAE FI AR AR 468 454
Share option expense (note 28) FEAR R =2 (P 5E28) 613 1,071
27,816 27,756
RETIREMENT BENEFITS 12, BRAEF|
Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance *ETFE?%?&F%MEE)%%%W‘EZ% il
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority MABSEEN(ZEZEEF+ A
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group —H iixﬁ() AEE2MMBBHBRR

participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$468,000
(2017: HK$454,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2017: nil).

%%%MEVEW@?*%#%(H@F%?
gl)) WRHEAEEREEELMER -
*E%F%ﬁ% e - EEREEESE
i’J/A%1&;*@?@4&)\9’]5%#13%%%1%

CEZ TS ABEBWA ERZAER -
ﬂ*ﬁ%@ﬂﬁz}\ﬂﬂé:%—miﬁﬂ
— BB &M B 25,000 T E B
30,0007 ° 5848 © &t & 5159 BN 5 55
% °

AEB BB ERIRE(BIES
ﬁ%%ZL\m)z%/%%ﬁg%s,ooofc(_
T —+4F : BEE454,0007T) B AF
EERART o HEENERRAMH
WMOREBER BB (ZE—+
FmE) o
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and
payable to the directors are as follows:

(a)

Fees
HK$'000
BT

AR (SR FMRAE o ZF— /VFEFEHR

13, B4 e T 44 dc e TN

Salaries and
allowances
EEREN
HK$'000
EL Ao

+
(a)

Discretionary

honus*

MR

HK§ 000
RETT

EZMHE
ENEENEEZMEERN

T

Retirement
benefit costs
BIFEAA
HK$'000
BETT

Share option
expense
BRERX
HK$1000
TR
(note 28)
(Ki28)

Total
Eh)
HK$'000
LA

Year ended 31 December 2018 EEZE-\%
tB=t-ALEE
Executive Directors UhEs
. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel ERALE
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching ERALER-F-N%
(resgned on 1 May 2018) LA-AEf)
M. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia ERfint
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania kBELL
Independent Non-Executive Directors B #4482
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FARTE
Mr. Au Chi Wal Ecwerd BEERE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing ik Yt
Year ended 31 December 2017 BECE-(f
TZAZT-ALER
Executive Directors YrEs
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Bk 120 3,006 2,200 6 - 5332
M. Tsang Chiu Ching SRBRAE 768 2712 2200 3 - 5718
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syhvia Riift 600 2,664 2,200 30 1,01 6,569
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania FRELT - 1,048 20 5 - 1321
Independent Non-Executive Directors B #/7 8%
Mr. Hui Yan Kit AL E 4 - - - - 0
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary EEREEN-Z-1F
(iesigned on 26 May 2017) il gt i) 20 s - - - 2
Mr. Au Chi Wi Edwrd BEEfE 0 - - - - 40
M. Lau Pui Wing YREEEN-5-+F
(appointed on 26 May 2017) LRZtrEEZf) % 1 - - - %
1,613 9,430 6,820 121 1,071 19,061

*

The discretionary bonus is performance-related with the basis

determined by the Remuneration Committee.

BEEARFMES ST s BERR
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include four (2017: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining one (2017: one) highest paid individual
are as follows:

E B SR TN
=+ (%)

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

RIRARHB A

¥ RN EAER

The emoluments of this remaining one (2017: one)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands:

Emolument band S & E]

Nil — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
1,500,0007T

Z 25 %1,000,0007T
FE 9 000,001 T & 8

EEME(E)
BE_ZT—N\ERZ—+tF
+=—A=+—HBLtEFE IE
EEHEXRENEEHE -

BE-T-N\ER-F—L%
A=+ —BILEE - AKE
WX HERMS FEAE B
BAAREESINAAEEEZ
el - o1 R 2 1A -

EERESHFMAL
BE-_ZE—NFE+-_A=+—
BIEFE  AfEBRERSH
A LTBRELNZ(—T—+4F :
WE)EE - Bl BN EX
stz DR B & ERS
BT —Z(ZE—tF: —F&)
SaFMALTZBMewT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ABTT
1,007 953

45 44

1,052 o

BT—RB(ZF—LF: —&)
BeHFMALZHME N FIAT
#E

Number of individuals
A
2017
—T—+tF
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. 2 - i&/E Kttt

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
&R 2ER

B HENREE  BLERE RE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AETL EETL AETL AETT AETL

At 1 January 2017 R-ZF-tF-H-H

Cost XA 2,908 4,184 4,054 2,554 13,700
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (611) (3,933) (3,914) (1,671) (10,129)
Net carrying amount EHFE 2,297 251 140 883 3,571

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—tF
+-A=+—-HI5E

Opening net carrying amount i%}]ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ 2,297 251 140 883 3,571

Additions - - 57 - 57

Depreciation %ﬁ% (76) (110) (71) (422) (679)

Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 2,221 141 126 461 2,949

At 31 December 2017 R-F—tF+-A=1-H

Cost KA 2,908 4,184 3,998 2,540 13,630

Accumulated depreciation 2iE (687) (4,043) (3,872) (2,079) (10,681)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,221 141 126 461 2,949

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=Z-N\f&

'I'ZFJ E'I' ALEE

Opening net carrying amount FOREFE

Additions NE

Depreciation e

Closing net carrying amount FEREOFE

At 31 December 2018 R=2-NF+=A=t+-H

Cost ﬁX$ y y y y y

Accumulated depreciation 2:rE ; ! ! (11,131)

Net carrying amount REFE : 2,435
As at 31 December 2018, motor vehicles with net carrying RZE—N\E+ZA=+—8 KA
amount of HK$141,000 (2017: HK$461,000) are held under SRE AE141,000 (S — £ F ¢
finance lease. The capital value of motor vehicles at the HEMEA61 0007T) 2 EEARBHRE S
inception of the leases amounted to HK$1,264,000 (2017: "y 17 3 v " o
HK$F1),264,OOO). ( XNFE - ABERHABEER ZERE

BB EA,264,000t (= F —+F : &
#4 264,0007T) °
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. #EYxk

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Fair value N¥E
At 1 January R—H—H 323,200 319,200
Additions through acquisitions FRWERE 18,537 -
Net change in fair value* NEEED)FEE" 11,963 4,000
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 353,700 323,200

* disclosed as “Fair value gain on investment properties” in the * ERFEAEEPMARRKRZ [IREMEZR

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair
value model and are leased to third parties under operating
leases to earn rental income, further details of which are set out
in note 32(a).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2018 by ROMA Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, on an open market, existing use
basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties has been categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
All of the fair values of the investment properties as at 31
December 2018 are level 3 (2017: level 3) recurring fair value
measurement, which uses significant unobservable inputs in
arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current
year or in prior year.

Fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are determined
using direct comparison approach. Fair values are based
on recent market information about prices for comparable
properties with significant adjustments for any differences in
the characteristics of the Group’s properties.

F{EaE R -

AEBZREMERABRIFERET
NAERZEEHERTE=7 " K
MEOBESWA  BRE-TFHFHER
Mi7E32(a) ©

BUGEREEGHBERMES BT
HERARER -_ZE—N\F+ A
=+ —HEREBAFAMBZHETHRERE
RSB 2 RE Y EITEHRE ©

AEEREMEZNVEFE D
BREEAFVERLZ(EZRBEMK
HELRFEIBRAFEINE) - RZT
—NE+ZA=+—8 " FBEREW*
ZRVFERE=ZEB(ZFT—tF : F=
B)REENFEFE  FELFER
EEAERTABRBARE - RAFE
BRE—FE FEBEE_EBZEYL
B NEEANEHE=E -

RZE—NER_ZE—t&F+_A
Tt BZAFENFERERZELEE
BE - AFEDIBBEAHEN LR
MEZTHBERBERE  THASEE
WEZIEB 2 TMEZEFEHERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

A5 A B R M R

15. gk (#)

(CONTINUED)
Details about the valuation inputs are as follows: B AZIE 2 H5FHH 0T ¢
Range of
Properties Location Level Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
IES g B fhEHR TUBRERANE TIBRRASE 2 EE
Residential properties Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality and ~ -11% to 10%
approach characteristics of properties (2017: -18% to 8%)
fr=m% i BRNBE AMEBRRNHENR/BE  11%E10%
(ZB—LF :-18%%28%)
A boutique hotel Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality and ~ -10% to 5%
approach characteristics of properties (2017: -5% to 10%)
i &b BRNBE AMEBRREHENR/ BB -10%E5%
(ZZ—tF : -5%Z10%)
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality and 0% to 30%
approach characteristics of properties (2017: -5% to 5%)
TEER 2 BRNBE AMEERREHENR/HE  0%Z30%
(ZZ—tF : -5%E5%)
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality and ~ -15% to 0%
approach characteristics of properties (2017: -5% to 5%)
BAENE 2 BRNBE AMEERREHENR/ BB -15%Z0%
(ZZ—tF : -5%E5%)
Residential property Macau 3 Direct comparison Discount/Premium on quality and ~ -5% to 5%
(acquired in 2018) approach characteristics of properties
=z (R=T-)\FlE) & BRNHBE AMEERRRHENRHE  -5%E5%

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables
would result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best
use of the investment properties, which does not differ from
their actual use.

As at 31 December 2018, certain investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$313,500,000 (2017:
HK$284,800,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities

granted to the Group as further detailed in note 25.

AAKEMERAILBYEZERZR
RFEEEMEZESRERTEHE
BHEREEAREZRFE -

AFETRERE W RO BB MR

REMAZE WREERRASLE
Z8 o

RZE—N\E+=ZA=+—8 KA
E#) A&7 %313,500,000c( = —+
£ B#284,800,0007T) 2 & TIRE
MECIEANEBERBITEE 2K
1 HREE—SHBEENME25 -
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16. FEAT + b FH B3 IA

2018
—E-N\F
HK$°000
BT

3,577
(123)

3,454

4,687
(1,233)

3,454

Opening net carrying amount FYREFEE
Amortisation charge for the year RNEEHHEER
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE

As at 31 December R+—A=+—H
Cost AR
Accumulated amortisation BT

Net carrying amount BREFE
Analysed as: DT
Non-current assets IEmENE E
Current assets MENEE

2017
—T—+tF
HK$’'000
BT T

3,700
(123)

3,577

4,687
(1,110)

3,577

3,454
123

3,577



17.

18.

AR (SR FMRAE o ZF— /VFEFEHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17.
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

A e T B AR M AR

&R FE A AL 2 T A
2B ERE A 2
B&EE

2018 2017

S MVE —z
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Listed equity investments in REELTZRARE -
Hong Kong, at fair value HNFE

— Available-for-sale financial assets — IR EE S TR E395
under HKAS 39 AHHE B EE

- FVOCI under HKFRS 9 —RIBBFBNBREELFINR

BRAFER ARMEEEA

19,029

19,029

FVOCI represents listed equity investments in Hong Kong,
which are held for long-term and are non-trading in nature.
Upon initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
as mentioned in note 2(a)(i), they were reclassified from
“Available-for-sale financial assets” (at fair value) to “financial
assets at FVOCI”.

Fair values of these listed equity investments have been
measured as described in note 35.1(iv).

BAFEFARBEEKAERARE
HEFEEME 2NES LMK
& o WM FE20)() it - RZT—N
F—A—BUREREBU B RE LR
FOWRR  WEFCA [AHRKEZHH
BEI|RAFHE BN BERATE
FAARMERBAZHMBEE]

ZELTERAREZ AFER TA
8 - FERENMESS1(Y) °

INVENTORIES 18. fr&
2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEETIT
Consumable stocks AAGFEE 70 55

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to HK$717,000 (2017: HK$681,000).

ABEEE 717,000 ( Z T — £ F ¢
75 681,000 ) 2 T ERAER B
My Yt ABE—_ZT—/\E+ -4
Z+—RIEEEZHERAE o
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —F— )\ + - H=1—HI FZF

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. #AVEF ARG B E
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 3

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Listed equity investments held FIEEEZ FTTRARE -
for trading, at fair value HAFE
- Held-for-trading under HKAS 39 —RIBEEB RIS 395
FEER 86,741
- FVTPL under HKFRS 9 —IRBEE BB HRE LR
FORIEATF B AERE =
6,741
FVTPL represents listed equity investments held for trading, EBEAFEFABRERAFETER
at fair value. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January EEE 7 FRAEE - #ankisE2(a)
2018 as mentioned in note 2(a)(i), they were reclassified ()Frit - R=F—N\F—H—BYIREK
from financial assets “held-for-trading” to “financial assets at MEBEBMBREENESRE - KEE
FVTPL". HIFEEE I CMBEEEN RS
R ATFEFABRZMBEE] -
The fair value of the listed equity investments have been ZELTRAKLEZAFEE T
measured as described in note 35.1(iv). 2 ' FIEEERMESS () ©
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. T A R WOIR R R FEAST
AND PREPAYMENTS /?J\E
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Trade receivables T 188 662
Other receivables, deposits and Hab It BRFR « 5] & MIBIFKIA
prepayments 3,705 4,027

3,893 4,689




20.

21.

A 3 (

VAMRAT o —F— /EFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZE - =F

m"%a*%i&%%&ﬁﬁ

—NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. & 3 T H A A HIR K B FELAS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) PIH (48)
In general, no credit period is granted for its customers due to —RmE - ARKENEBEE - 8
the Group’s business nature. ERAEBERFPRELEER -
The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade R EER - &R (HkREE
receivables, net of loss allowance, at the end of the reporting Bl 2R DM EZEAE) T ¢
period is as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F E—
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0-30 days 0£30H 162 662
31-60 days 31£260H 16 -
61-90 days 61290H 10 -
662
No loss allowance was provided as there has not been HRBREERERAT EEERTE
a significant change in credit quality based on historical EANE - MW ETIREERE - K
experience. The Group determined that there were no EEEETFRR=_ZE—\E—A—AK
significant financial impact arising from the adoption of ECL —E-NFE+ZA=+—HHAELE
model under HKFRS 9 for all trade and other receivables and %&ﬁjﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁzﬁﬁ KA RG] &R NE B
deposits as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. The B R RS 2R FOR TR BB 1B
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. FHEWEEREAVIEZE - XEE
W E AR AT E R -
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21. CDHCHERATAEEK

Pledged bank deposits at the end of the reporting period
represent time deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) with original maturity periods of 3 months (2017: 3
months to 6 months). The deposits earn interest at fixed rates
ranging from 2.50% to 2.70% per annum (2017: 3.00% to
3.50% per annum) and have been pledged to secure certain
banking facilities granted by a bank (note 25).

RIREBRZ BEMRITER - B
ARE(ARE ) EHEZ EBRFR
FRAE R ASER (T —+F .
SEARZE6MA) - ZEGFTRENT
2.50%£2.70% (—Z —+4 : 3.00%
£3.50% ) K & & F F R BRERA S - I
EEEA - UBE—MBETREZE
FERITRE (FFE25) ©
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22.

23.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. Bla KESRITH R
Cash and bank balances include the following: Be RIRITEBEIENA TR
2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 11,428 8,217
Short-term bank deposits RHRITIER 111,980 141,848
Cash and bank balances B4 RR1TES 123,408 150,065
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSETHRITERFENZE
bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are placed with FIEFHE o RHER1TIF 3} Al R IR
banks with original maturity periods range from 2 months to 17 REZIHER T F2ME A8 £61E A
6 months (2017: 1 month to 12 months) and earn interest at —ZT—tFEAEI12ER) - kiE
market interest rates ranging from 2.11% to 3.70% per annum MBMENFEF211%E3.70% (=
(2017: 1.00% to 4.30% per annum). T—+F  HF1.00%%E4.30%) HRE
FE o
At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances RMEHR  UAREFECHER
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$105,842,000 (2017: IRITA 4 55 #105,842,000 (=&
HK$103,825,000). —+4F : #103,825,0007T) °
TRADE PAYABLES 23. EEETIEK

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows:

RBEHR - NEEZ & ERNEN
ZEREOM(REZAHWNT ¢

0-30 days
31-60 days

0% 30H
31£60H

2018 2017
AN Y -z =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT 5T BT T
85 72

59 27

99
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24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 24.
LEASES

Obligations under finance leases are as follows:

Al A R I
BAREREMT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Total minimum lease payments: xIEHE AR5
Due within one year —F N E H 326
Due in the second to fifth year FEEFRFE(HEMESE
inclusive ER)EHA 458
784
Less: Future finance charges W RIRBEER (92)
Present value of finance lease MEMEEAERE
obligations 692
Present value of finance lease R B EAERE
obligations:
Due within one year included in —FRNE B BRI A E
current liabilities 288
Due in the second to fifth year inclusive £ -—FE2FAFE(HREMEBDTE
included in non-current liabilities ER) RS BIEREEE 404
692

The Group entered into finance leases in respect of the
purchases of motor vehicles. The lease period are 4 to 5
years and interest rates are 2.75% to 3.25% (2017: 2.75% to
3.25%) per annum. The leases have no terms of renewal or any
contingent rental provisions.

REBBBEAREITLBERESE -
HEBANZERTE  FHEXEFB275%
E£2325% (ZF — £ F : 2.75% &
3.25%) o T & I £ M IR E A =k
RIEIE ~
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T—HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)

25. RATHEE (M)

Current liabilities

Portion of bank loans due for
repayment within one year

Portion of bank loans due for
repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand
clause

RBAE

AR —FREEZRT

28 n

BERERERKS
—FREBZRITERZEN

ZAR

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans due for repayment after
one year

FRBEE

AN —FREBEZRITER

The bank borrowings, including the bank loans are carried
at amortised cost. None of the portion of bank loans due
for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause (and therefore classified as current liability) is

expected to be settled within one year.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

BYT T BT T

R

135,102 200,127

61,262 42,962

196,364 243,089

9,403 =

205,767 243,089
RITEE (BERITER) RBHEKA

SR - BMERS hﬂz%iﬁaﬁ{l H(MmEA
WD BERRBAE) BN —FREE
Z%Eﬁ%mulﬂﬁi‘ﬁi,ﬁﬂﬂﬁ(\ FAEH -
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25. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)
(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled
repayment is as follows:

25. 4Rf

THE CHHEH) (

AEBZRITEERAEEERHE

1125

Portion of bank loan due for repayment B —EAREE 2 HRITER
within one year

Portion of bank loans due for
repayment after one year (note (a))

=i 4)

Z &R0 (MtiE(a))

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFENRN
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBRFAN
After 5 years hFig

AR —FRIEBZIRITER

Notes:

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause.

The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period,
all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.0% to 1.7% or prime rate minus 2.95% to
3.00% (2017: HIBOR plus 1.0% to 2.2% or prime rate minus 2.95%)
per annum. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
December 2018 ranged from 2.38% to 3.99% (2017: 2.13% to 2.91%)
per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are secured
by certain of the Group’s investment properties and bank deposits
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$313,500,000 (2017:
HK$284,800,000) and HK$80,382,000 (2017: HK$128,811,000)
respectively, also corporate guarantee given by the Company to the
extent of HK$205,767,000 (2017: HK$243,089,000).

SHTANT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T P T IT
135,102 200,127
58,891 10,703
1,758 29,793
10,016 2,466
205,767 243,089

IR T AR5 B SR 1wk P 8L 2 =

%25 e
|82 A 35 E B P RHEMIRERKEER

RIRERR - AEEZRITEE(BUB
¥EHE) - ARIRBEARITAERE(E
EERITREIZERE D NEFEBA1.0%E1.7%K
BB BT EFEL2.95%E3.00% (=
T—+F  BEBRTAEFRSNES
1.0% %2 2.2% 3k 1% A% 18 28 F1 % 5 2.95% )
B cR=ZFE—/N\F+=ZA=+—8"
AEBZETEEFEN T238% =2
3.99%(=ZF—+F : 213%E2.91%) °

ANEBZBITEERRBITHETIALRE
B & T 8= A E 5 5l #7% ¥ 313,500,000
(= Z—+t4F : B%284,800,0007T )
KB #80,382,000 L (ZF—L4F : B
#128,811,00070 ) 2 AE BB E W%
RERITER - URAREMEEZ LR A
75 1£205,767,0007T ( =T —+4F : B
243,089,0007T) 2 A RIEREHE A
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and their
movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

IESEBLIH
BN F [ BB R
EHAREREDZHENT

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax Tax investment
depreciation losses  properties Total
REMEZ
IERIERE BEBR ARESD &&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BETRT BETRT BETT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 2,670 (2,064) 1,832 2,438
Charged to profit or loss RIEBZ PN Z 5B
(note 9) (HiEE9) 329 - 156 485
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+tF
1 January 2018 +-A=t—-HR
—E-N\F-H—-H (2,064)
Charged to profit or loss RIER R N 2 FIE
(note 9) (K¥z+9)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\E+=A
Er=F (2.064) 2,408

At 31 December 2018, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$279,420,000 (2017: HK$285,531,000). A
deferred tax asset of HK$2,064,000 (2017: HK$2,064,000)
has been recognised in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$12,512,000 (2017: HK$12,512,000). No deferred tax have
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses as it
is uncertain whether future taxable profit will be available for
utilising the tax losses. Under current tax legislation, the tax
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

R-Z—NE+-A=+—H &x&
B HIEEIE 4 A8 1279,420,0007T
—T—+F : ##285,531,0007T) °
B 5t I8 B 18 478 % 12,512,000 7T
(ZZF—+4 : #%12,512,0007T) &
RIEER T8 E E % ¥ 2,064,000t (=
T —+F : B2 064,0007T) © R
K B T 7E 7R 2K A] B JE =R B s A ifn 55 R
RIBEEE  WBRBUERKRTHES
BRERELERIE - B B 3 2 R IEE
Bl FRIEE 18 ] R HR AE S o
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. A

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
FREEER0.2T 2 ZBER

Number of Nominal
shares value
igvip 4| H{E
HK$°000
BT T

Authorised:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018

R
R=ZF—+F—HF—H -
e+ A=+—HEK

—N\F+_A=+—8 2,000,000,000 400,000
Issue and fully paid: ERTRHRE :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F—HF—H -
and 31 December 2018 —ET—+H+-H=1+—H

R—ZE—N\E+-A=+—H~

309,705,597

28. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
the participants who have contributed to the Group and
encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The board of directors may,

28.

PAEAR S2AY 2 w4
AARBRER-_ZETNFRA-+=
BREITZREEFAS LBBZAE
IR EE T 2 ([ BB R a2l ) -
ZIEEREFSIZEER H’JE?%&@JT
RESAEBEIELERM2EE -
PET IR ViN/N 7&%1&%2%‘
BASBORSEARARERD 2B
B -EFgrRNBERASEEEMKE

at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of any member RNAIZEE - BB ' URAKEEM
of the Group, any advisors and service providers of any B 8 A R) 2 1] A e R AR 755 4 FE vl 5%
member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the HERENRBARARRRG @ REE
Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i) the closing BMER T =FF 2 &EmE : ()RR

price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of the options by each of the relevant grantees. The options
vest on the condition that the grantee is a participant of the
Share Option Scheme from the date of options grant to the
commencement date of the exercisable period of the options
and the participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

ARORELEREEBERIMZ
WHE: (WO REERLBERES
BRI AER S B EER ATz FHKRm
& RikHhmEE - SHEERAE
RENE T 2 BB - 81T
ZEBARE - BREZEBEGTA
ERARERERERD NEERET
FHRBRZ B AIENERE - BAEH
BRETEZ2HA  MBHEAEER
IR 5 B AR A T B3R 2 (E () B A
AIEITEREBE A EEBZ o
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28. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 28. DA AT 2w AE (48)
(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the reporting period RS HA R A B AR A 2 ) K H N
and their weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FEHITEFBMT ¢

2018 2017

—B-N\E —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of options price of options price
Y nEFH
BREZA THEE e 178
HK$ HK$
BT PEHTT

Outstanding at 1 January N— B —HiARTE 22,563,826 WPEN 19,467,826 0.377
Granted [ gunt 3,096,000 WL 3,096,000 0.698

Outstanding at 31 December R+ —=—H=+—H
mARTITIE 25,659,826 22,563,826 0.421

Exercisable at 31 December WN+—-—A=+—H
AJ{T{E 25,659,826 22,563,826 0.421

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31 BHEZZT—N\GFER_ZFT—+tF+=H
December 2018 and 2017. =+—BHIEFE - BEITEERE -
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28. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 28. DA AT 2w AE (48)
(CONTINUED)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options NBEEBARZ RITEEREZTEE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as R{TEHIT :
follows:
Number of Exercise
options price Exercise period
BREHA TREE 1TEH
HKS$
BT
2018 —E-N\F
Granted on RZZEZNF 16,371,826 0.310 22 May 2009 - 21 May 2019
22 May 2009 AAZ+ZHEH —EThFRA=Z+=ZHZE
—hERA=+—H
Granted on RZE—RF 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 — 13 Sept 2026
14 Sept 2016 AT AEEL T—AFNATHBEZE
_7_A¢hﬂ+f5
Granted on RZZE—+tF 3,096,000 0.698 19 Sept 2017 - 18 Sept 2027
19 Sept 2017 NATARED —tFENAT+NABE
—ZE-tFNA+NH
Granted on RZZT—N\F 3,096,000 0.395 3 Oct 2018 — 2 Oct 2028
3 Oct 2018 TA=A%E —E-NF+A=ZHZE
—E-N\&F+A=H
2017 —ZE—F
Granted on RZZEZNF 16,371,826 0.310 22 May 2009 - 21 May 2019
22 May 2009 AAZ+ZHEH —EThFRA=-+=ZHZE
—hWEFRA=+—H
Granted on RZE—RF 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 — 13 Sept 2026
14 Sept 2016 AT AEFEE T—AFNATHHEZE
_7_A¢hﬂ+ S|
Granted on RZE—+tF 3,096,000 0.698 19Swumﬂ—1m%m2w7
19 Sept 2017 NATARED —tENAT+NABE
fyftiﬂﬂ+ﬂa

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.4 years (2017:

3.5 years).

AOTEEREANA-_ZE—NFE+_A
= +t—BzZNEFEFHBETE
BIAF(ZE—

4 7 RHA
+4 : 3.55) -
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28.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(CONTINUED)

The share options granted during the year and in prior year
have been determined using Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model by an independent professional valuer at the date of
grant. The following are the key inputs to the model used:

28.

Grant date B A
Exercise price 1T1EE
Expected life of share options BRETRR T 5
Dividend yield RExE
Risk-free interest rate I e ) 2
Expected volatility KR

Expected volatility, determined based on a statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last five years, and expected life
of share options, determined based on the historical data, may
not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year is
approximately HK$613,000 (2017: HK$1,071,000) which has
been recognised as share option expense (note 11) with the
corresponding balance credited to the share option reserve.
No liabilities were recognised as these were all equity-settled
share-based payment transactions.

AR AR S2AS 2 Wl 1B ()

REARREFREZERER %
BYBXGEANELBHRAAD
nodTRAMTHEEEEXEE - KT
RZEBERAER 2 ERHARE

2018 2017
—E-\F —E—tF

<Hola G TR 19 September 2017
—E-\E+A=0 mEEEEmPEEwiNE

HK$0.395 HK$0.698
7B#0.3957T 7 1#0.6987T
5 years 5 years

5% 54

Nil

& i

2.32% 1.14%
57.35% 59.92%

REBEBEDAFAERRERTERD
EEE < TREKE  ARREBER
BEEBRERSFSR  RBEK

FARBz2BEREZAFEN A
613,000 L (ZE—+F : B
1,071,0007T) ' ERERBERERAS
(MI5E11) » HEZEHE T ABRE
i BREBAR S BUERSEE
ZBROBNRRS ML EEREE -
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29. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 29. #fkosm] BRI«
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = BT T BEETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERESE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR Z&ZE 49,800 49,800
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments £ 4t & U BR 3X K T8 1~ 738 1,013 1,349
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL M B A mIF A 262,379 238,205
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITAEER 114,875 142,901
378,267 382,455
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rl MEPNGIE S 149,483 149,430
Other payables and accruals HAth & T BR SR K FE AT R IE 842 589
150,325 150,019
Net current assets REEEZE 227,942 232,436
Net assets EEBE 277,742 282,236
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 2R 27 61,941 61,941
Reserves HiE Sl 215,801 220,295
Total equity FEL4AEE 277,742 282,236
On behalf of the directors RERES
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
ZEE KEAE
Director Director

EF EF
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

30.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Principal activities

g ]

R=—F— ¢+ A=+—8 ' A7

Tvrﬁ—l—ﬁmﬁ NRZ B MR
Percentage
of interest

Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG )iig 2]
AR EH EMRLBHREAER FTEXEREELH ERITRAFE EE2BINL
Held directly:
EERE:
Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 63,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong of US$0.01 each
iR EREBRAR HERZHS  ARRE  REBUSRERK BREE.01ETL 100%
63,0008 & i
Century Legend Management ~ Hong Kong, Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company management services of HK$1,000,000
in Hong Kong
HEREEEERAA B8 ARDA REBRBY X ER RS 75%1,000,0007.2 100%
1,000,000/% % B %
Century Legend Entertainment  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
HERFREBR AR EERZHS  ARRA  REBEERERK 1ETL 2 1RE AR 100%
CL Property Investments Hong Kong, Investment holding 1 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
Limited (Note) limited liability company in Hong Kong
HREXFREBRAR(ME) &F BRAA REBREREER BT ARG BR 100%
Held indirectly:
B#EEE
Century Legend Finance Hong Kong, Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company and personal loans of HK$10,000,000
in Hong Kong
HEEEREBRAR BA  BRARA REBREEER 7#10,000,0007T.2 100%
WAER 10,000,0008% & AR
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, Investment holding 10,000,000 ordinary 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong shares of HK$10,000,000;
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares™ of
HK$5,000,000
HERERRREBRAF B4 BRRA REBUSREER 7#10,000,0007C.2 100%
10,000,000/ @M
715,000, 000752

5,000, oooﬂxﬂ% S
B
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. FiJE -~ ml e (48)

(CONTINUED)
Percentage
Principal activities of interest
Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG g2
AR EH EMR LR EAERN TERBEREELH ERTRAFE BEZAIHL
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE : (H)
Hong Kong Macau Trading Hong Kong, Securities trading and 100 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments of HK$100
in Hong Kong
BREHERAT B8 ARRQA NEBNREEFEER BH1007T 2 1008 Ak 100%
NERE
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, Property investment 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company of HK$10,000
HEREFBR AT B8 ARAQA MERE ##10,0007T.2 100%
10,0008 & B
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares 58%
limited liability company under the brand name of HK$3,827,496
of “Headquarters”
in Hong Kong
BRAERLA &% BRAA RERAmE 75 13,827,4967T 2 58%
[Headquarters | 150,000 & &%
ReglRE
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments
in Hong Kong
HERRMEBRAF B8 ARRDA NEBUERERR BT IR G BR 100%
ROERE
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company
HEARNT B8 ARAQA TEER BT ARG ER 100%
Max Rise Investments Limited  Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company property investments
in Hong Kong
BERERBR AT B8 ARRA REBREREARR BT ARG ER 100%

PLIES &
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L STATEMENTS

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. BB~ FEEE ()
(CONTINUED)
Percentage
Principal activities of interest
Place of incorporation and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NG )ig 2]
ARER MU REARRN ETEEXBRKEBH ERTRAFE EEZAIML
Held indirectly: (Continued)
MRS (#)
Hong Kong Macau Travel Hong Kong, Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited limited liability company services in Hong Kong of HK$500,000
BRKEARAT B ARADA REBRMEKITILRY  %%500,0007T.2500,0008 100%
TR
Century Legend Properties Macau, Investment holding Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 100%
(Macau) Limited limited liability company in Macau 25,000
g mECRM)BRAR R ARAR R SR EER R (DR ]) 100%
25,0007
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, Property investments MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company in Macau
HEEEMEREERAR R BRAR REFREMERE JRFI#25,0007T 100%
CL MLO12 Property Investment Macau, Property investments MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company in Macau
HEMLO1ZNEREBRAR BF - ARAA REFIRENFERE RPI¥25,0007T 100%
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
tREREFAREERAR B BRAR RS JBFI25,0007T 100%
* The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends * 45 22 4 R T R (D B S I 4 R UG VRS

or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.

Note:  This subsidiary was newly incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October

2018.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year (2017: nil).

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and no fixed of
repayment.

BANEE-$5 S CIP DI\ 2 )
ERRRAEBERHFEATEINE L

LEs
X 7S

Mzt : ZMBRARDR-_Z-NA\F+ANBR

BRHEMAL -

BEM B QBN FERE BITEAER
EF(CE—LF &)

RRSEASER 28 REATE
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RESERVES
Group
The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gain on
transferred from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve represents the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity investment designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting
period.

31.

ff i
A EE
AEERAFERBEFEZ RS
BEREHINGARSEEHRAIIR -

B2 MEENT ¢
(a) EXRfFHE
AEE 7 BEARGHERS

(i) ARABEBHITHAEE
HERAEBZZER
ARBE-NAN=FKH
B2 BAEE RS
HERZEZRE &

(ii) AR AEHE
TR _FZF
—FEBETROZER
BB 0.1 7T HRE
¥0.097T °

(b) Efhif#EfE
EEEBER T —Z-FH
BHEMFBREREMENR
Flakas -

(c) ELAFEFTAEMBERA
ZHBEERE
BN FAER AR M2 A R
RERBESHRTENETEY
BREEEIRA MEERRD
FEF AE M2 EWRA Z BRE
BREZAVHERZEEE -
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31. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 31. fatifhi (48)
Group (Continued) AEE(E)
(d) Share option reserve (d) BRERE
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance BRERECRIENE3A7E
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17. 2B HERY -
Company RAF

Share  Contributed Share option Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE BHES BRERE ZitER &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI

At 1 January 2017 W=E—t&—F—H 153,481 213,978 3,902 (161,431) 209,930

Profit for the year REEGRH - = = 9,294 9,204

Share option granted (note 28) BRIERE (HE28) - - 1,071 - 1,071

At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tE+ZA=1-H

1 January 2018 R=ZE-N\E-F- 153,481 213,978 4,973 (152,137) 220,295

Loss for the year AEEHE - - (5,107) (5,107)

Share option granted (note 28) B mERE (Fo8) - - 613 - 613

At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+-A=1+-H 153,481 PARKTL:] 5,586 (157,244) 215,801

Contributed surplus of the Company represents: KRR 2 BB

0] the difference between the underlying net tangible () N & B 48 B BT B A B 2 A8
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and BREEFBEAND R il
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company EHEARZERTERYAE
at the time of the group reorganisation referred to ZER &
above; and

(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the (ii) THEBERABHE BITRA
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on WY BT -FE BT
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001. 1?2 SREER%0.17TH DR

75 #0.097T °



for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZE - =F

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years
(2017: one to three years). At the end of reporting
period, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

A 3 (

32. &

(a)

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

BREEA)

EF_FEFLF(HEEMF

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. The leases run for an
initial period of one to five years (2017: one to five
years), with options to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective landlords/lessors. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, in respect of the rented premises,
falling due as follows:

(b)

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

BREER)

E_FEELF(HREMF

L 22 P B

VAMRAT o —F— /EFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m"%a*%i&%%&ﬁﬁ

—NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

HRYE

EREEA

AEERBEEHERHLMN
HEEME(ME15)  BEZ
BN F—Z2=F(ZF—+t
F—E=F) REEHK

1R 4% B AGE A T S22 S A 8
REHE - AEBEANRATE
HA 2 H R R SR SR B 5K0R
R

2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
BT
9,260
2,575
11,835

EREBA
AREREEEHE R HEH
ETWMAENE - ZSHENS
BR-—E=RAF(ZF—LF —
EhF)  WHERERBHK

AEEEGFEET HBEAKR
BEZ BRBTEE - 2FHE
BB ARAHE -

RBEHR - RESATHEL
2HE  AEBEHEANCHED
ERUATHEHIHZ RRHKE

FAEZmEmmInT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEETIT
2,646 3,715
1,655 840
4,301 4,555
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

T—HILFE

33.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

»\Zﬁ ﬁﬂi/ﬁ%%l}ﬁnf

BMEFHELNBEHENT

Obligations
under finance Bank
leases borrowings
MEHEEE RITEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Note 24) (Note 25)
(FfizE24) (FMizE25)
At 1 January 2017 R_ZE—+&F—HA—H 980 245,219
Changes from cash flows: ReEns#s)
Capital element of finance lease payments mﬂﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬁ Z§$*Bf (288) =
Interest element of finance lease payments gt &R & 72 1 2 5 (38) =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE = (2,130)
Loan interest paid ENEE 7T'J = (4,926)
Total changes from financing cash flows: BEREREL BB : (326) (7,056)
Other changes: Hfth E & -
Interest expense (note 7) LB R (BRET) 38 4,926
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+tF+=ZHA=+—H
1 January 2018 M=F—N\F—H—H 692 243,089
Changes from cash flows: ReneE&

Capital element of finance lease payments
Interest element of finance lease payments

BEMENTZEAREN
BEMEMNF A E BN

Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁEﬁ%EFﬂ%%’JQ
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITEE

Loan interest paid BENEHF 'J

Total changes from financing cash flows: MEReREZ P
Other changes: H2s) :

Interest expense (note 7)

FE RIS (M EET7)

At 31 December 2018

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H

10,000
(47,322)
(5,786)

(43,108)

5,786

205,767
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties during the
year:

(@) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel are the directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose
remunerations are set out in note 13(b).

(b) Operating lease arrangements

BHEE N 52 5
RESHBREAMBEREZZS
Rt FRAREREBEAT
BT TIEARS -

(a) FEEEAEZFHM
EERE TEEBEABRNX
RAIZEZRETESHME
B FEzHESHFBIRER
MI5E13(a) M sE13(b) °

(b) REHEZH

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEET T

Rental expenses for a motor BATRARIZMAEZ
vehicle paid to HeMx
— Conba Management Consultant —2£HEIREER AR A 7
Limited
— Complex Investments Limited —BHBREBRAR
Rental income received from MIA TR 2R EUHE 2 S A

— Po Lee Securities Limited —BHESBR AT

234
216

720
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BA# N5 (48)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Others (c) Hft
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Company secretary service income [AIJA A &I E 2 A &l
received from WERBIWA
— Po Lee Securities Limited —ERNBEHEERA -
— Raise Success Limited —Raise Suocess lelted -
Brokerage fee paid to F’JLAT’AT&HZZ%
— Po Lee Securities Limited —ENBEHERA 4
These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group ZELRHEAEBREHNFERRE
and the contracting parties. BRETE °
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial EECRRAEREEEEEMEAER
shareholder and director of Conba Management RElZEBEmRERES -
Consultant Limited.
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen EFTEMRAERERBELZLTAEN
Sylvia, director, are the beneficial shareholder and BREFRAGIZE=RRRES o
director of Complex Investments Limited.
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the director of BEEEBMRALEAENEZTLEBRA A
Po Lee Securities Limited. ZEE -
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial 2 £ ¥ B R & 4 A Raise Success

trustee and director of Raise Success Limited. LimitedZ B XA KRESE °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of reporting
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.11
for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

35.

%ﬁ%é\ﬂﬂ’%i&%‘%[ﬁﬁ‘i

—NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

B LR,

AEEAEZBHEER  TER™
SR (BIEINER R ) R E e K Bk
+FTRHBM) EERRERBE SR
cAREMEERAREESETRE
raﬂ‘lmiﬁE’UTTi‘Exﬁ‘Jli{ I 77 SRR &
AEEMBRANBETNZE - T
XEIRNESR T EER AR
$‘§@M1filit—rﬂf&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ¥2ﬁﬁﬁ
AEEREWEGIFTE @2 ARERE

BT AT B

HEEIES - AT EFERERS
H BIBERABREAE UK

B 75 U 1 3 AT 2 I FT B 3R e BE AR
B TSR R 2 SR o

35.1 HMHEEREEZEE
REmERRDERANEEY B
EERBBEZEREESEN
T - F@<m T ERRIMAE
BHARFEZBEA - B
3.11°

165



166

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A T B AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o 7 —E—)\F+ - H=1+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35.
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

U]

Financial assets

A5 Ja e i B e P R

(%)

35.1 MBEERAEBEZER (K

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost
— Trade and other receivables
— Pledged bank deposit
— Cash and bank balances

Loans and receivables
— Trade and other receivables
— Pledged bank deposits
— Cash and bank balances

(i) BKEE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
T T
AIHHEZHBEE
BEAFEFAEMER
WA Z BIT5EE
BAFEFABREZ
B 75 &
BB HEK AT EC B EE
— B N H b R AR X 3,312
—BEARITER 80,382
—IR ¢ RIRITER 123,408
BN e U BR 7R
— EE R E A EURER X
— BIRRRITER
— B4 RIRITES

226,919

2017
—T—+F
HK$’000
BETT

19,029

6,741

4,044
128,811
150,065

308,690



AR (SR FMRAE o ZF— /VFEFEHR
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. BATS R B R AR E
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 35.1 MIRKEERABEBEZER(E)

(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (i) BIHFAEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T

Financial liabilities measured at 1% 4K ANET 8 2

amortised cost Ak
— Trade and other payables — B H e AR 12,534 13,722
- Bank borrowings (secured)  —R{TEE(HHEA) 205,767 243,089
- Obligations under finance — BB E A
leases 405 692
218,706 257,503
Financial instruments not measured at (iii) WHERAFEFTEZ
fair value SRIA
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WHERAFEIFENE
include trade and other receivables, pledged BT ABREEFERAEM
bank deposits, cash and bank balances, trade FEUER R ~ B MIRIT
and other payables, bank borrowings and TR BHekR1TE
obligations under finance leases. B EEREAMEMNE
HRITEEERER
EARE -
Due to their short term nature, the carrying EREREEYE 252
values of these financial instruments BTECZERmMEHEER

approximate their fair values. FEEE °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value

The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (previously
classified as “available-for-sale financial assets”
under HKAS 39 and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market
prices which is classified as level 1 financial
instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

35.

S JRL g 7 B e 8 PHE R =

(%8

35.1

)

MBEERERZER(EH)

(iv)

BEAFEFEZSE

=

Pt 75 422 A (R R R fiR A
WHRERRBTNSERS
MIZAFEFAHME
EWA 2z 7% EE (Rl
DEREBGTERE
395 IE T~ [ Al i i & B 75
BE | RBEAFERA
BmzWBEEEZ AT
B H2EmMBREE
E WO BREIESR
TH-

FA-BEF2ENES
BemIA-

TREFIRDFERRT
Bze@MIAEZIH (R
BAFESHRESD)

- F1[E - HREBE
kBBERERT
152 MIB(REH
)

= F2E - REEN
BEMERZ(BE
%) s (BRI
B HEDT) AT EE
ZBA(TBIEE
1TEMEEZR
B): &

- SE3E : WIFRE
AEBERZTSH
BeBEREE
AEZBAER
BRZBA) -
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZE - =F

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair

(iv)

value (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

As 31 December 2018

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

R-Z-NF+=-A=1+—-H

BRATEF AR
LUBEE

RATEG AR
2HERAZ
HEE

Net fair values

A e T B AR M AR

—NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

s Ja B i B S P (E R

(48)

35.1 MBEERABEZER(FK)

Level 1

F1E
HK$°000
BT T

Level 2

$2E £3E @t
HK$°000
BETT

BRAFENEZESRE
Iﬂ(ﬁ)

R VB RARANE
ANTFEFEZHBEE
TBEIDBUAT 2RAFE
B4 :

Level 3 Total

HK$000
BETR

HK$’000
BETR
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZ—ZF—/\F+=-H=1+—HI FF

B B AT R
N

35.1 MBEERAEBEZER (K
(ivy BRAVEFEZEHE

THE(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E F2E £3/E et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AETLT BETT RE®TT E¥TR

As 31 December 2017 R-F—+F+-A=+—H

Financial assets at fair value AT E AEZE

through profit or loss ZOAE 6,741 - - 6,741
Available-for-sale financial A E 7B EEE

assets 19,029 - - 19,029
Net fair values FATE 25,770 = = 25,770

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (previously
classified as “available-for-sale financial assets”
under HKAS 39 are listed equity securities
denominated in HK$. Fair values have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of reporting period.

REREHR - F1EHEF2E 2 M E
3 o

At ERFEERBOITERMGEERD
B ST 3R & AR AR L X I B o

AEBZEAFEFABEZZHEE
EREAFEFAEMEZEWA Z
BEE (LS EABAEFT4ELZE39
SRIET (Al EMBEE ) BB
WEZ EMBRAZS - AFELE
EEBHFRREHRHFZEAEM
BB °
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. WA LR A B K A (E TR
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#4)
(CONTINUED)

35.2 Foreign currency risk 35.2 JhEEEL B

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposures to currency risk arise
from its deposits placed in banks, which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in notes
21 and 22. The Group have no other significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operate in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HK$.

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as
follows:

Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITIER
Cash and bank balances e RRITHERR

SMEERERIER R T A2 R FE
FARRASREKHEXRZE)
R ) 2 [ B o W a0 B RE 21
R22F#E - NEEZINER
BREZBREREFRRETZ
T RXTEUBBERARKE
AHE - ARAKEEZERB
BIE - KD EERHHNE
BHERGE - BINEXB5HE
R R AR B EE AR
EARSNERRR o

AREE
BONEEHE Y B A E R A R
Al 7 R R 1R
T :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T
80,382 128,811
105,842 103,825

186,224 232,636
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #Z= —F— \F+=-H=+—HI FZ
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. B R\ R e B N T ET &
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%8)
(CONTINUED)
35.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 35.2 MR (4E)
Sensitivity analysis BBEDW

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s result and equity in regard to a 2.5% (2017:
2.5%) appreciation in the foreign currencies against
the group entities’ functional currencies. The 2.5%
(2017: 2.5%) is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.

TEREAANEBMEEREST
INEW AR EERINEEEA
BE2.5%(—ZT—+F :25%)2
BREIE - 25% (=T — L F :
25%) BEEANTRNEEEE

A B 2 3R 5N R B B AT (R B 2
LR - AT R E NS [E =R

Al B B AE(HETEE XK o

REB RN RE B RAR 2 IMNE
Bz SRR DT TIRBR B
RERERBRKEEERRFA
—ERFZINEERBRED
BOLERE -

Decrease in loss  Increase in profit for

2.5% (2017: 2.5%) appreciation in RMB AREFAE2.5%(=

E—+F:25%)

for the year and  the year and decrease
accumulated losses in accumulated losses
ERBRRET  FARTEMRERN
BERY ERHY
2018 2017
“B-N\E I
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT
4,656 5,816

A 2.5% (2017: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign
currencies against the Group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

SN R E BRI E R
B2.5%( =T —+t%F :2.5%) °
TSE AR E B A FE 2L NS

ERAREEEFARRZE
@,
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.3

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

m/\ﬂﬂ%%i&%%lﬁn{

—NFE+ZA=+—HIFE

SABs Ja i B e P R B

(%8

35.3 FEEM

FL2H(TEEZL )8
+100E 25

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

MERBRIDBARERTAZA

FEFRSREGEDHH X
EPHMREB AR - NEBEFT
mEZNEEHMISRAREE
BT AEBEAFEBN KRR
TEE - AEBEBRKHETM

FIERERBE - A - EFE
R RESHISN - WEE RN

EREZEENEANXES) -

TRIVR A E M2 BUR S
A A R IR A IR ] B
BERT AEEZRERE
ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁz
TE)LEE IHRAIM -

Decrease in profit for
the year and increase

Increase in loss
for the year and

accumulated losses in accumulated losses

FRABERRT FREFRIK

I8 12 N ZTHEEE M
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT TS T IT
2,047
I =5 1 00 £ Bh i H Ath B2 BUR

T SUHARBEAFEZ
%F&%*ﬁﬂﬁﬂhrﬁﬁ
AERZZE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.4 Equity price risk

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values of equity securities decrease as a result of
changes in the level of equity indices and the value
of individual securities. The Group is exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (previously classified as
“available-for-sale financial assets” under HKAS 39
(note 17) and financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss (note 19).

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 31 December 2018, if the quoted market price
for the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income had been 10% higher/lower
while all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s equity will increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,438,000.

At 31 December 2017, if the quoted market price for the
available-for-sale investments had been 10% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s equity will increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,903,000.

35.

(

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #HZ—ZF—/\F+=-H=1+—HI FF

R RO
N

35.4 REEERR

B = E AL B T B R AR AN 7B 5
2B E R ZE 15 BOKF & (=
Jﬂ#F@%@ﬁmyzﬂ

c REBPAKRE ETTRAE
#ﬂﬂ*ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁkﬁmi
AR AZ S EE(SLRIDER
BB SHERIE395 I\ [ Al 1
ﬁ&WﬁEFDMWﬁnN&E
R EFAES 2 M EEE(H
FE19) - WEE EmRABE ST
SEBRR -

EREF A E b K& B HE
REEE  UERBILRAR - I
%F%E%%F%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ

o 7N £5 (B E £ H ¥ S SR B AR
ﬂk

RZEBE—NF+=_A=+—
B BosBEARAFETA
Hip2mERA 2 B 154 E ik
ZTELEHTHE10% - MAT
EEMEHEFTE XS
B2 RSB R KB
1,438,0007T °

R-®—t&+-A=+—
B BRI SRR

mELEH TFFE10% @ imFT
EHMEHRERTE  BIARE
E 2 RS A I, m A #E

1,903,0007T °



AL S (SR AIRATE o —F— /VFEFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.4

35.5

Equity price risk (Continued)

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss had been 10% (2017: 10%)
higher with all other variables remain unchanged, the
Group’s loss (2017: profit) for the year would decrease
by HK$544,000 (2017: increase by HK$674,000)
whereas the Group’s accumulated losses would
decrease by the same amount. A 10% (2017: 10%)
lower in the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss, with all other variables held
constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

WA JR g 7 B e N PHE R =

(%8

35.4

35.5

REERER (&)
AR - WE DB RRDFER

ABRmUBEE2 EHERA
BHEAHRZTELEA10%B(=ZF
—+tF  10%) © mATE EfhE
HHERFIE - AARER 2 ARF
EEE(ZE—tF  &mf)#
B S 544,000 (ZF —+
& ANE ¥ E74,0000T) 0 M
NEB 2 R EE &R HE
R MEDERAEZERAFER
ABRUBEE 2 ETHERA
BHHMTETEKI0%(ZF
—+tF  10%) © mATE E A&
HHERHIE - AREB 2 ARF
EXxEMERSEHEREEE
ERrS 2 -

EERk
FERREERTAZRS)
REBTER BT AEKEA
TZEE  BEAKRERZY
BEBEZAR AKBEEEE
BHERZT REBEBAZ
BN ETHEEEN A
WA Ko B 1) B PR P WK BR R 2 PR
B AREEMAX ZEER
B o AR E D RIURER K
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.5 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which
is calculated using a simplified approach. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each debtor. The default
risk of the industry and country in which debtors
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables, also
including pledged bank deposits and bank balances.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial instruments are their carrying values.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. WA LR A B K A (E TR
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#4)
(CONTINUED)

35.5 Credit risk (Continued) 35.5 EERE (&)

Prior to 1 January 2018, no impairments for trade
receivables are recognised. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables that are not considered to be impaired was
as follows:

RZZFE—NF—A—HA ' I
ok EREWRFERBE ©
R AL A R E R & AR
KRR DT ¢

2017
—T—tF
HK$’000
BEET T

1-30 days past due WHEI1 30K

662

662

The Group measures loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is
calculated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and current market
condition in relation to each debtor’s exposure and
time value of money where appropriate. The ECL also
incorporate forward looking information with reference
to general macroeconomic conditions that may affect
the liability of the debtors to settle the trade receivables.
Trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The Group has assessed that the ECL rate was not
significant as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018. Accordingly, no loss allowance for trade
receivables was recognised.

AEEZAER2HEHREER
B8 2 2 B8 X B UCRKGE
EEBRRE  ZTBRIEAR
R 2REBABEEN
BN ESERARREKOA
BRRITHRAARE EREE
(MER)FE - BREEER
NEERAIEFEBBALE
EERBUERRENN —REE
BRI AR EEE R -
LERUEAERERHAEER
R\ B BB AR B0 4

AEECHEEAEEBEEX
R-F-NF-—A—BE=F
—NF+ZA=+—BHETE
Koo Bt - WEH L REWIR
RHERE BB -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.5

35.6

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash
and bank balances is limited because majority of the
bank balances are deposited in reputable banks, for
which the Group consider to have low credit risk. There
was no history of default in relation to these financial
institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

35.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
At the end of reporting period, the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

On demand

#EX
HK§000
T

At 31 December 2018 H=%-N§t=A=t1-A

Trade and other payables BEREERT

Bark borrowings including those ~ F7EEE(RIREAREX
contain a repayment on demand [BEBIZBAEE)
clause [note) (W) 195,964

35.

Within
1 year
-ER

HK§000
BETT

S5 JEL g A B e A PE R &

(%)

35.6

In2to
5years

g3
HK$'000
BT

HBE AR ()
RBESR - AREERE 0
LEE R PPt
BERERIIRIT ¢

Total
contractual Total
More than  undiscounted carrying
Syears  cash flows amount
AHRER

BRRE REREAE Rase
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
R ERTT T

12,534 12,534

208,221 205,767

Obligations under finance leases ~ BYETEHE - 326 458 405
195,964 13,489 221,213 218,706
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables EXREMENESN - 1372 - - 13,722 13,722
Bank borrowings including those ~ EE(RREEAREX
containarepaymenton demand  EEERZBTEE)
clause (note) (W) 243,089 - - - 243,089 243,089
Obligations under finance leases BAREAE - 326 458 - 784 692
243,089 14,048 458 - 257,5% 257,503

Note:

For bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause which can
be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis above shows
the cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect.

M SE -
HRBERTUDEBMBTREZEER
BEERZBRITER  LAOWMEAE
B AT RE R R 2 & T MR (B i B 5 $E T
RS IHEN ESRA R EER ) 27
RERHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 A B R M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 ¢ #F —F—/)\F+ - F=1+—HIFFZF

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. BAS R B R AR E

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)

(CONTINUED)

35.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 35.6 mBELRER(E)
The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis TR AIREREE &R
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause ZBTERBEFRBEERT] 2
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in ETEXRBEEAEE DM -
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest ZECHEBRERANNERTE
payments computed using contractual rates. As a ZHEBAR - At ZEL8
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts W FME B SR 1R ESK
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity EBE BEEHSEERNBEEZ&HE
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s "E o Kt RAKE 2 B AR
financial position, the directors do not consider that it Mo BEERARIT AR BT
is probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to FHRMEEZRNEER - &
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe EHEEZERITERBRER
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with HEECETERHEES -
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity analysis - bank loans subject to repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HEREXEBAI < BTERRETRT AN HBEIH

Total
contractual
undiscounted Total
Within In2to  More than cash carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years outflows amount
BRAKE

—£R ZERF BELF HERBAE RE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI

31 December 2018

138,275 200,689 195,964

31 December 2017 —ELF
+ZA=t-H 203,830 42,004 2,839 248,763 243,089




30.

37.

AL S (SR AIRATE o —F— /VFEFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 A B R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2018 o #ZE —ZF—/)\F1+ - F=1+—HI FF

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$365,142,000
(2017: HK$$378,689,000), which the management
considers as satisfactory having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

On 18 March 2019, the Group entered into a provisional
sales and purchases agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of an investment property at a consideration
of HK$16,800,000. The carrying amount of the investment
property as at 31 December 2018 is HK$16,000,000. The
transaction has not yet been completed before the date
of approval of the financial statements. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement on 18 March 2019 for details.

30.

37.

HARE
AEEBEEEAZBEAS

@ REAKRESELEZ®E
EHEBERBRRREAMIFNE
S EIE S TlE

) XFHAKBZBEMER: R

€ RMEAKEZREREEEE
RHEESD -

o B B R R S A A RS 1T 4R
HRER  AEREKTEETE
27 0 3R 9 2 B 4T AR A
BB R AR 2 B T8 - ety
RN BB E AR B -

EHEESESRABAEAETEZE
KeR—_ZE—NF+=_A=+—8"
BEAR& Y A B365,142,00070 (=
T — 4 : B ¥378,689,0007T) * H
FEEEEEREIBHZEARABST R
TEHRRBERERS  TRBERS
ANmEZ AR

e 1A% 2 IH

RZFE—NAF=A+/\B  AEEHHE
—EZBYE=ZFFNBEEE WS
NIEE —BEREWE  REABK
16,800,000 - ZHEMENR =T
—N\NF+_A=+—BZEREEAES
#16,000,0007T ° B B3 5 1 01 7% 3
FHt/EBBIRT MR T c BEEFEIE -
B2HALQRBHAE-ZTE—NLF=A
+ABZAMH -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
UEGETE S

ATHAAEERBERERBFE 2 EE -
BERAGBHE  DRHBEACTIEZLER
MBEHR - AP EALTHEREEXIT B REK
Z 85 °

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Results 4

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2014 2015% 2016 2017 2018
“EME ZF-RF ZEAF CR1F it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BRI BT BETT BT BETT
Revenue WA 32,115 34,065 28,457 28,390 26,099
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE(BR) /&7 15,109 (18,443) (19,263) 11,024 (12,793)

* Included continuing operations and discontinued operation * BIERFEREXBRERIEEET

Assets and Liabilities EERER
As at 31 December
BW+=A=1+-H

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“2-mE TR CERF 215 gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BRI BT BET T BT BETT
Total assets BEE 674,990 658,148 625,516 639,116 587,191
Total liabilities BaRE (275,705) (277,069) (262,218) (260,427) (222,049)
Shareholders’ funds BRE: 399,285 381,079 363,298 378,689 365,142
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEY KT

S ER 55135 1 55 13657 R ER

Investment Properties BEYHE
Percentage
of interest
attributable
Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
AEBEEM
1 Jizkes =1 EEEE AL
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPN K B EA4RITEZE RN E R OKH [EES RETE S 349FHF R 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
RPIREEA S B8 28519-5975% [HES hEITRE 8,110 A5 R 100%
EB1H538-78-B5 -
R E 4 EHF565-605-C5%
SR E H EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 »
P12-09 K P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
One Central Residences, leasehold
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58,
Macau
RPD B K 55 B8 6855 = 5% B 5 2618 T1/BEE F= RHIHE 1,359 7R 100%
Nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 13,599 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
EIRKEEHT105-1075 [HES REATHE 13,599F 7R 100%
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEY KT

Percentage
of interest
attributable
Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
AEBEENL
] JizE=S HE EEEE EZES L
Flat H, 20/F, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Heng Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
ARG RBA SR GIE195% F=E REHE 691 FF R 100%
= A EILR20EHE
Flat E, 27/F, Residential Long term 1,029 sq.ft. 100%
Pine Mansion, leasehold
Harbour View Gardens,
No. 26 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
B8 OB A B IR 28265 F= RHAMEE 1,029 R 100%
BRIERBINE2TIEER
Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
BABRUBRN LA L EB175 F= REAEE 902F ;5 R 100%
BREERAE101EBE
Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
B8 OB A SR S IE215% F= REAME 675F 1R 100%

= A R E23EFE
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